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PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: Yes.

THE COURT: Could you keep an open mind and coneider

each of those options equally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: Yes.

THE COURT: Any reasgcn you couldn’t be a fair and
impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: No.

THE COURT: All right, thank you very much, air.

Questions, pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cause, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you. Questions, pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor, i1f I may. Good
morning.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: Good moralng.

MS., McMAHON: I have the jury questioannaire in fromt
of me that you filled out and there’s one area I'd like to ask

you about.

I don’t know if you recall this section, but the
questionnaire tells you that if you reach the penalty phase
then you have three alternatives; imprisonment with the
possibility of parole, life imprigonment without the
poseibility of parole, and death, Then under that the form
tells you that you must consider the defendant’s background,
that is mitigating circumstances, such as his health, mental

gtatus, age, childhood experience, education, et cetera. Do
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you feel you would consider those factors and it relates to
the three penalty forms, and you've marked not sure and
unsure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: That is correct.

M3. McMAHON: After being here thia morning and
listening to Judge and the questions that have been asked, can
you tell me whether could you serve on this panel as a juror,
and in fact the penalty phase was reached, that you would
coneider all of those factors in determining punishmeant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITBR: If I was in Mr.
Thomas‘ position, yes, I would like to have me on here,
because of the fact that I am impartial, and that I would be
able to reach a verdict based on information only.

MS. McMAHON: That’s good to know, but that doesn't
answer the --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: That doeen’t answer
the question, sorry.

M3, McMAHON: Okay. The question is, if in fact a
verdict of guilty was reached, the second phase, the penalty
phase, as a juror you're required to consider background
information, health, education, childhocod experience, et
cetera, in determining which of the three alternatives is the
appropriate sentence. On your questionnaire the response you
marked was not sure, unsure. So my question to you now 1la, 1if

you serve ag a juror and in fact a verdict of guilty were
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returned and the penalty phase, would you, knowing that it

would be required of you, be able to consider the factors I've

enumerated in determining the appropriate sentence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SCHNEITER: Yes.

MS. McMAHON: Thank you. I have no further
questicns. Pases for cause.

THE COURT: Pass for cause? All right, Me. Bell?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Eight years,

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I‘m a store manager of a
ratail store.

THE COURT: What store?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: The Dianey Store.

THE COURT: What is -- 18 it in the Forum oxr
gomething? I don’'t know --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Mm-hmm. Yes.

THE COURT: The Forum, all right. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No, engaged.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Okay, have you ever been in the
military?

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

1-55

AA5253



W @O &g A o s W N

I o I Y T T B T R
S T T S B TR PO =

17
a8
19
20
a1
22
23
24
25

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Casual acquaintances. A
girl that used to work for me, her husband works for Metro and
a friend of mine’'s brother-in-law.

THE COURT: Oh, that's not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You’'re not going to give greater weight
or lesser weight to a police officer’s testimony simply
because they are a police officer, are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Just car vandalism, about
four different timea.

THE COURT: Did they catch the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: That‘s going to affect your
deliberations is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You or anyone closely assoclated with
you ever been arrested for a erime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.
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THE COURT: You going to follow my instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: 18 that yes?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes. Sorry.

THE COURT: That‘s all right. You’ll hear me with a
lot of witnesses and I -- they drive you crazy, but you know,
you have yo say ves or no, but wa won't go into that. That'e
no -=-

You understand that this case could be divided into
two phases, one we call -- or call the trial phase. You
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: At the trial phase you’ll hear
testimony, you’ll hear witnesses, and cloeing arguments, and
you -- I'll give you the instructions, and if you determine
the defendant ig not guilty, fine; or guilty of a lessger
crime, fine. If and cnly if you find that the defendant is
guilty of first degree murder then the penalty phase kicks in.
Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yesa.

THE COURT: And then the jury determines punishment,
do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes,

THE COURT: And there’s three possible options; life
wicth the poseibility of parole; life without the possibility
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of parole; or impositicn of the death penalty. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: And sitting here now, you could coneider
each option and determine what the -- the option you feel is
appropriate, can’t you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes,

THE COURT: Is there any reason you couldn‘t bes a
fair and impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

Questions, pass for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Just briefly, Your Honor.

Goed morning, Ms. Bell.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Good morning.

MR, SCHWARTZ: dJudge Bonaventurs asked you some
queatiens about the death penalty, that you can consider each
of the three options should you have to do so as a member of
the jury.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Mm-hmm.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Now congidering them is one thing,
but if you felt after hearing all the evidence and you
returned a vardict of guilty of first degree murder than we go
into the penalty phase of the trial. If after hearing all the
evidence at the penalty phase and you felt that the only
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appropriate verdict for the death of these two young men was
the death penalty could you vote for the death penalty? Could
you come into this courtroom and announce a verdict of death
in front of this defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes, I could.

MR. S8CHWARTZ: Thank you very much.

Pags to cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Want to say anything or pass
for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Thank you, Judge.

Good morning Me. Bell.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Good morning.

MR. LaPORTA: Like Mr. Hannigan you answered aome
questions in the area of attitudes toward the death penalty
where you saild you were unsure about whether you could
consider the defendant’s background information, which has
already been explained to you and all three poseible
punishments. Can you explain that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I think I would have to
hear what the background information speclifically was,
depending on, you know, if it was just the education or if it
was actually the person’s mental stability. It would depend
on specifically what the background information was.

MR. LaPORTA: But you will listen to that? I mean,

that's =--
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Oh, sure.

MR. LaPORTA: -~ that’s mitigating evidence that if
he is convicted of first degree murder that we would ask you
to listen to, that kackground information.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL:; I understand that.

MR. LaFORTA: And the State would be presenting
their own background infoxrmation.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Okay.

MR. LaPORTA: All right, now, the prosecutor asked
you asked questicna about whether or not you could return a
verdict of death, let me ask you this? You’ve read the
synopeis in this particular case.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Mm-hmm,

MR. LaPORTA: He’s charged with the double homicide
of two individuals.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Mm-hmm,

MR. LaPORTA: Honestly do you believe that you
could, after finding somebody guilty of first degree murder,
they intended to do exactly what they did, do you believe that
you could consider life with or without the possibility of
parcle equally?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yea, I could.

MR. LaPORTA: Okay. Just one last area. I mean, I
don‘t bring this ocut to embarrass you, but you answered some

questions about attorneys --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I remember those questions.

MR. LaPORTA: -- and you stated defense attorneys,
although moat of your experience with them comes from
television that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: All of my experience comes
from television.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. You wonder sometimes how
they sleep at night.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: Do you have a negative viewpoint of
defense attorneys?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No, I was just answering
the question as honestly as I could and really all of my
opinions strictly come from television --

MR. LaPORTA: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: ~- as far as movies or TV
shows and honestly depending what show you watch, the defense
can be the bad gquy or the prosecutor, so that was really where
I got my opinion from.

MR. LaPORTA: All right, well, let's ask -- let me
ask you about that opinion. As a result of -- forget the
basis from which you have formed your opinion, okay?
Televiasion. Is your opinion of defensa attorneys a negative
one at this juncture?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.
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MR. LaPORTA: So that your opinien of Ms. McMahon
and I is not such that it would affect your deliberatioms with
Mr. Thomas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No, it’s not.

MR. LaPORTA: You hold us in the same esteem as
these two fins gentlemen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes, I do.

MR. LaPORTA: Pass for cause, Your Honoxr.

THE COURT: All right. Juror Number 374, Ms.
Woodward is pretty sick out there. Any objection we excuse
her? State?

MR, SCHWARTZ: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Defense?

MR. LaPORTA: The number, Judge?

THE CQURT: 2374.

MR. LaPORTA: No objectione.

THE COURT: Thank you. You could tell her to raport
back to Room 1013.

Is it Ma. Foster? Where were we?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: Yes.

THE COURT: Ms. Foster, how long you been in Laa
Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: About nine years now.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: 1I'm sorxry?
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THE COURT: What do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: Oh, my husband and I have
our own business, The Mobile Welding., He --

THE COURT: Welding?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: He does the welding part
and I run the office. We have our office in the home.

THE COURT: All right. BSo your husband works with
you in that, is that correct? And do you have any children?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR FOSTER: Two daughters.

THE COURT: Two young to work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: No, the oldest one is in
the army. She's a truck driver. The nineteen year old is a
bank teller at Well's Fargo Bank.

THE COURT: Great. Have you ever been in the
milicary?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: By marriage I‘m related
to a Henderson Police Officer.

THE COURT: By marriage, they’re married to your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: Yeah, distantly. My
cousin, he’s my cousin’s nephew.

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you have some

relation to police officer in Henderson that’s not going to
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affect your deliberation in this case?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR FOSTER: No.

You’re not to give greater weight or

lesser weight to a police officer‘s testimony simply because

they’re a police officer, You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
deliberations, is it?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR FOSTER: Yes.

Have you ever been a victim of a crime?
JUROR FOSTER: Yes, house burglary.

Did they catch the individual?

JUROR FOSTER: No.

You never had to appear in court?

JUROR FOSTER: No.

But that's not going teo affect your

JUROR FOSTER: No.

Have you or anyone claosely assoclated

with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROBPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
ingtructiona? And if

JUROR FOSTER: No.

Ever gerve on a jury befora?
JUROR FOSTER: No, I haven’t.
Will you be able to follow my

you're picked as juror the first phase

would be the trial phase 1a what we call it and if the jury

£inds the defendant not guilty or lesser included that

completes the case.

If, however, if the jury finda the
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defendant guilty of first degree murder then that penalty
phase kicks in. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSBTER: Yes.

THE COURT: And then the jury sets the punishment
and the three options are life with the possibility of parole,
1ife without the possibility of parole, or the imposition of
the death penalty. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And could you keep an open mind on all
of those options and consider all three of those options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: No.

THE COURT: Why do you say no?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: I don't beliave that we
have the right to determine to -- determine the -- to take the
life of another individual.

THE COURT: Is& that a religious thing you’re going
on or something --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: I'm not real religious,
but I just believe that God’s the only one that has the right
to make that decision.

THR COURT: 8o, it’'s not any religious -- it’a just
something that you feel is in your mind, that no matter what
you couldn’t -- you couldn’t at least impose the death
penalty? I8 that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR FOSTER: Yes, I know I couldn’t.
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THE COURT: All right. State?

MR. ROGER: Challenge for cause.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Challenge.

THE CCURT: Defensae?

MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honmor.

THE COURT: You have no objection to that?

MS. McMAHON: We have no questions, No objections

to that challenge,

THE COURT: Please report back to 1013,

The eclerk call another prospective jury -- juror?
THE CLERK: Marie Desiderio?

THE COURT: All right, Marie, take that same geat up

there, all right? How long you been in Las Vegas?

office.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Just about ten month.
THE COURT: And whers did you come from?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIQ: New York.

THE COURT: And what did you do in New York?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: I worked for a medical

THE COURT: All right, and then you decided to move

here ten months ago?

work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yeah.

THE COURT: And what do you do here now as far as

PROSPBCTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Okay, I work for a
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cagino, I’'m in human resources. Personnel --

THE COURT: At what casino?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Primadonna.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DESIDERIO: Yes, I am.

THE COURT: Does your husband work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yea.

THE COURT: What does he do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: He just started a job
with the -- & new newapapar, The North Tribune -- Sunday
Tribune.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: 1It’s a brand new
newspaper.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: I have three children.
my oldest has -- she’s out here with us. she has a little job
for a car carrier company. My other two are back home, back
East. One ie a language teacher and my son just got out of
the Navy.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever been in the
military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: You acquainted with anybody in law

enforcement?
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PROEPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: Ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Just house burglary.

THE COURT: Ever catch the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: That's not going to affect your
deliberation here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: You avaer serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DESIDERIO: Only summoned, never
served,

THE COURT: Okay. Are you going to be able to
follow my instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Mm-hmm, yes.

THE COURT: And again that two phased thing that
we‘ve been talking about, the first phase would be the trial
phase and if you determine that the defendant ig guilty of
first degree murder then we go into the second phase. We call
it the penalty phase. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yas.

THE COURT: Then you'd have the opticn, the Jury
sets punishment, of 1ife with the possibility of parocle, or

I-68

AA5266



w @ -y e W N e

[ R R R R R A
g4 60 0 e W RN R O

18
i3
20
21
22
23
24

25

life without the possibility of parole, or the imposition of
the death penaity. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yes.

THE COURT: Could you consider each option and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yes, I could.

THE COURT: -- and determine what is an appropriate
punishment in this particular case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yes, I could.

THE COURT: You could. Any reason you couldn't be a
fair and impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: No.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

Any questions? Pass for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: dJust one, Your Honor.

Ma‘am, do you understand the questions being asked
by both counsel and the Judge that the State has the
responsibility of proving the defendant guilty beyond a
reasonable doubt bafore we would ask you to returm a verdict
of guilty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And de you understand that verdict is
tha same in all criminal cases regardleess of the charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: VYes.

MR, SCHWARTZ: So the fact that the defendant is

facing a capital murder charge, in other worde he’'s facing
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potentially the death penalty, the State only has to prove the
defendant guilty beyond a reascnable doubt. So would you
follow the inatructions given to you by the Judge at the
conclusion of this trial?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DESIDERIO: Yea, I would.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And would you hold us to a higher
standing or a standard that is in compliance with thae Judge‘s
instructions? What the Judge instructs you to do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Exactly,

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you.

Pags for cause, Your Honoxr.

THE COURT: All right, thank you.

Questions, pass for causae?

MR. LaPORTA: Thank you, Judge. Yes, I have a few.

Good morning.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Good morning.

MR. LaPORTA: Ms. Desiderio, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: Questions that you had in the area of
attitudes regarding the death penalty. And this is most
important to all the parties here. Okay? There is the
penalty phase as the Judge told you. And yon get to that
phase 1f you, during the guilt [sic] phase, the defendant is
unfortunate enough to be found guilty of first degree murder,

and that’s the only way that you get to that phase. In your
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questions though, and realizing there‘s no such thing as a
wrong or a right answer here, just the answer according to
your attitudes.

The questien was, witheut having heard any evidence
in this case, what are your general thoughts about the benefit
of imposing a sentence of life with the possibility of parole
on a person convicted of murder in the first degree? And your
answer waa, this punishment should not apply for a convicted
murderer. Not severe enough if the evidence prevails.

I'm assuming and you correct me if I‘m wrong, that
if the evidence prevails means if you find him guilty of first
degree murder, he intended to do exactly what the State
alleges he did it, and that was murder two people, intending
to do so.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: That's correct.

MR, LaPORTA: Is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: That's correct.

MR. LaPORTA: Is that what you meant by if the
evidence prevalla?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Mm-hmm.

MR. LaPORTA: So, I‘ll ask you the gquestion one more
time that’s already been asked of you. If, according to the
synopsis of this case, you find that Mr. Thomas is guiley of
two counta of first degree murder, ars you personally able to

consider, equally with the other two forms of punishment, life
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with the possibility of parocle?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yas.

MR. LaPORTA: All right, Can you explain what you
meant by this should not apply, then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: T probably just didn‘t
understand the question --

MR. LaPORTA: Okay. You understand --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: -- as well as I do
now.

MR. LaPORTA: And you understand that now, that we
have somewhat educated you --

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Abpolutely.

MR. LaPORTA: -- that you must consgider all three
forms of punishment equally going into the Penalty phase?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DBESIDERIO: Yee.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. And you're able to do
thae?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DESIDERIO: Yea.

MR. LaPORTA: Pase for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr., LaPorta.

Mr. Wooed, how long you been in Las veagas?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WOOD: WNinetesn years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living, sir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: I work for Nevada Power,

THE COURT: Are you married?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: I‘m in the process of a
divorce right now.

THE COURT: All right. Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WQOD: Twelve and £ifteen.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been in the

military?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WOOD: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcemant?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WOOD: No, air.

THE COURT: Have you ever bszen a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Not that I know of.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: No, sir.

THE COURT: You understand that Mr. Marlo Thomas
aits here -- ha's brought to Distriect Court by way of an
information and it’s a mere charging document, you understand
thac?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And Mr. Thomas 18 presumed to be
innocent at this point. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WCOD: That’s correct.
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THE COURT: And it’se incumbent upon the State of
Nevada to prove him guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1If you feel, and only if you feel that
the State has proven bayond a reasonable doubt that he's
guilty and he's guilty of first degree murder, then the
penalty phase kicks in. You underatand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And at the penalty phase it’s incumbent
upon the jury to determine punishment, all right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Correct.

THE COURT: And you have three options; life with
the possibility of parole, life without the possibility of
parole or imposition of the death penalty. You understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And are you in such a state of mind that
you could equally decide what the appropriate punishment is?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WOOD: I believe so.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn‘t be a fair and
impartial juror im this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOODs No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you very much, sir.

Questions, pasa for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Pass for cause, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Thank you.

Questiona, pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Mr. Wood, good morning. Do you
believe in your mind that after having sat throuwgh a guilt
phase and if you find Mr. Thomas guilty of a double homicide,
firat degree, do you believe that you could come back during a
penalty phase and truly consider ome of the livea, with or
without the possibility of parcle?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: If circumstances mitigated
that.

MR. LaPORTA: So you will, we have your assurances
that you will listen to the mitigating evidence that bhoth the
defense and the prosecution will present in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: Well, maybe you could explain one last
thing. Attitudes towards attorneys, you gaid defense
attorneys were trying to make a living and public defenders,
of which we both are, we’'re really trying to make a living.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: Isn't that the natural
progression, you start out as a public defendant and then move
to the defense gide.

MR. LaPORTA: Or just the reverse.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOOD: The same thing.

MR. LaPORTA: Thank you. Pass for cause, Your

Honor.
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THE COURT: Pass for cause then?

Well, Mr. MacKenzie, how long have you been in Las
Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Fifteen years, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: T work for tha Las
Vegas Metro Police Department.

THE COURT: That's where you’'re a civil employee
there. What do you? What are your duties then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I‘m in the radio
communications %11 building; take care of all the equipment.

THE COURT: All right. How long have you been doing
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: For thirteen years.

THE COURT: Of course, in that capacity, I'm sure
you’re acquainted with a lot of police officers?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZ2IE: Yes. Many of them on
the trial, too.

THE COURT: At this trial? Like who? Who do you
know here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Dave Lawis, I worked
personally with a few yeare, before he became a police officer
down there. And Terry Mayo used to have been the captain.

THE COURT: Okay. The fact that you know some
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pelice officers and perhaps people -- I don’‘t know, if they’re
goeing to testify here, but they’'re on the -- they’'re on the
information endorsed. 1Is that going to affect your
deliberation, the fact that you know these police officers?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I’'m unsure on that.
How could I -- how could I say? I know them --

THE COURT: Well, you just have to -- I mean what
you -- what would I -- all I could do is tell you what you
should do is that you're just to judge this case solely upon
what you hear from the witnees stand. You're to set aside
people you know, you‘re just to say, hey, I've got a job to
do, I'm a -- an American citizen, it’s my duty to be a juror,
I have to -- I have to exercise my cobligations, and I got te
hear the witnass stand, and I’'ve got to determine, just by
what you hear from the evidence, whether or not the defendant
is gquilty or not guilty. That’'s what you -- that’s what the
law is, you know.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MacKENZIE: But 1t could influence
me, that’s all I can say, Your Honor, you know, being that --

THE COURT: Well, could you try and do that, though,
just judge this --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I could try, yes.

THE COURT: -- case by what you hear from the
witness stand?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I‘ve served on a trial
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before, a civil trial.

THE COURT: Pardon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I‘ve gerved on a trial
before, a civil trial in that casge.

THE COURT: All right. Will you be able to --- hava
you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Yes, four years in the
Navy, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Anybody that's in the
military -- you're the first that eaid you’re in the military.
Oh, I just follow it up with another question that -- you were
in the military, what branch were you in by the way?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: The Navy.

THE COURT: And how many years were you in there?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MacKENZIE: Four years,

THE COURT: Okay. And you didn’t have anything to
do court martialing or military police, did you?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MacKENZIE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: O©Oh. All right. You ever been the
victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: dJust burglary, about
nine years ago.

THE COURT: They never caught the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone associated with you
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ever been arrxested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ever sarve on a jury before, that civil
one? How long ago was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: It was about -- oh,
s8ix years ago or 80.

THE COURT: Here in this District Court here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Yes.

THE COURT: You were picked as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MacKENZIE: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you picked as foreman?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: No.

THE COURT: You deliberated the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: The jury got dismissed

or --

THE COURT: What?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: -- they came to an
agreement .

THE COURT: Okay. So you never had --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: No.

THE COURT: -- to reach a verdict, is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. This is the two-phase aspect of
this -- of the possible case here.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I undarstand, Your
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Honor.

THE COURT: ‘The first phase would be the trial
phase. If and only if the jury finds the defendant guilty of
first degree murder, then it goes into the penalty phase. You
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I understand.

THE COURT: If the jury does not find the defendant
guilty of first degree murder or perhape a lessor crime, then
it doesn’t go into the penalty phase. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I understand it, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: But only if it geoes into the penalty
phase, then you have those options; life with the posaibility
of parole, life without the possibility of parole, and the
imposition of the death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider each of those
optionsa?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MacKENZIR: Yeas, Your Honor, I
believe I could do that.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.
Queations, pass for cauase?

M5. McMAHON: I would like to --

THE COURT: Well, I didn‘t -- I'1l get to you in

minute, Ms. McMahon. I just want to get to the State first,

I-80

AAB278



W M 3 4 N b W N =

H B B H HpE B R
@ ~ ;W e W N = O

13
20
21
22
23
24
25

you know.

MR. ROGER: Good afterncon or good morning, Mr.
MacKenzie. With regard to your function and determining
punishment, do you feel that you’re well suited to make that
type of decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: Not the death penalty.

MR. ROGER: What are you feelings about the death
penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I do not feel to
convicting another human being to death and I'm againat that.

MR. ROGER: There are some people who believe as you
do and that’s certainly not a right or wrong answer. Are you
telling us that if the circumstances were appropriate you
could not vote for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: That‘s right.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Challenge for cause.

THE COURT: Well, I juest asked yocu, gir. I said
could you equally consider the ocptions?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR MacKENZIE: I was trying to
explain that here --

THE COURT: I mean that’s the gqueation I asked,
could you -- and you said, yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MacKENZIE: I misunderstood, Your
Honor, I'm gorry. I didn’'t understand your question, I'm

sorry.
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THE COURT: Does the defense want to say anything to

the challenge for cause?

MBS, McMAHON: No, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: No, no cbjection.

THE COURT: Please report back to room 1013. The
clerk, draw another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: G&haryn Brown.

THE COURT: Sharyn Brown.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yeas.

THE COURT: Take that same seat, Ms. Brown. How
long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Twenty-eight years.

THE COURT: Where did you -- how many years?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BROWN: Twenty-eight.

THE COURT: Oh, a long time resident. All right.
What do you do for a living, ma’am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: I'm a housewife,

THE COURT: And what does your husband do?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BROWN: He’s an attorney.

THE COURT: What’s his name?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Jay.

THE COURT: Jay Brown?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Right.

THE COURT: All right. He’s mostly a civil lawyer,

I imagine, right?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Commercial.

THE COURT: Commercial, civil lawyers -« I don’'t
seem him practice criminal law too much.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No.

THE COURT: The fact that you have an attorney
that’s a husband, that’s not going to affect the deliberatiecn
in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, I have three.

THE COURT: What do they do for a living if they’re
older --

PROSPRCTIVE JUROR BROWN: The oldest is an academic
counselor at UNLV. My gecond daughter is a law student in San
Diego. My youngest is a law student in San Francisco and is
working this gsummer ae an extarn for Judge Gates.

THE COURT: Okay. Were you aver in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybedy in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: My second daughter was a
police officer between callege and law school.

THR COURT: Here in town?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: The U.S. Capital Police.

THE COURT: Yeah. The fact that your second
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daughter wae a police officer for a short time, that’s not
going to affect your deliberation in this?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No.

THE COURT: You understand you’re not to glive
greater weight or lesser weight to a police cfficer’'s
testimony simply because they’'re a police officer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Right.

THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yas, I have.

THE COURT: What wag that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BROWN: TI‘ve had several -- well,
a number of burglaries, but the major problem was I had a home
invapion robbery.

THE COURT: All right. How long ago was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Five years ago,

THE COURT: And you were in the home when that
happened?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, I was.

THE COURT: All right. Probably a traumatic
experience. Anybedy get hurt?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No.

THE COURT: All right. Did they ever catch the
individuals?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, they did.

THE COURT: Did you ever have to appear in Court?
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PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR BROWN: No.

All right. Was it resolved?

JUROR BROWN: Yes, it was.

All right. The fact that you had that

very unpleasant experience, that'e not going to affect your

deliberation in this case, ims it?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR BROWN: I don’t think so.

All right. You -- were you ever closely

associated, or have you ever been arregted for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE
THE CQURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JURCR BROWN: No.

Did you ever serve on a jury before?
JUROR BROWN: Yes.

How many times? One?

JUROR BROWN: Once.

Criminal or civil?

JUROR BROWN: Criminal,

How long ago was this?

JUROR BROWN: Seven, eight years ago.
What was the chargs, do you remember?
JUROR BROWN: Murder.

Were you picked as a juror?

JUROR BROWN: Yes, I was.

Were you picked as foreperson?

JUROR BROWN: No,

Without telling me what the verdict waa,
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did the jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: And what was the name of that defendant,
if you remember?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: I really don’t remember.

THE COURT: If you don‘t remember, you don’'t
remember. But that was about six, eight years ago?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Oh, easy, yes,.

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you have that
prior murder jury experience, that‘’s not going to effect your
deliberation in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BROWN: No, sir.

THE COURT: Wae that a death penalty case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, it was.

THE COURT: All right. Again, if you find the
defendant. guilty of first degres murder, then it kicks into
that penalty phase. Do you underatand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Right.

THE COURT: Then you have the option of setting
punishment. It’s up to the jury to set punishment, right?
Life with the possibility of parole, life without ths
possibility of parole, the imposition of the death penalty.
Do you underatand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Could you equally conaider each option?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

I think so.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn‘t be a fair and

impartizl juror in this case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

THE COURT: Thank you, very much.

for --

MR. ROGER: Thank you, Judge.

Not that I know of.

Quentions, pass

Good morning, Mrs.

Brown. You were previously selected as a juror in a murder

case, right?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

Right.

MR. ROGER: Any of the attorneys the same?

PROSPECTIVE JURGCR BROWN:

No, sir.

MR. ROGER: Were you asked to determine punisghment

in that particular case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

Yea, we were.

MR. ROGER: How did you feel about being asked to

determine whether 2 person lives or dies?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

just our obligation here. It's part of the legal system -- it

was just what we had to do.

MR. ROGER: You indicated that you found cthat it was

positive experience?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:
MR. ROGER: In what way?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN:

I1-87
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a lot about the legal system and I just thought it was
informational and it was positive.

MR. ROGER: Your hueband is a former law partner of
some criminal defense attorneys here in town.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Yes, he is.

MR. ROGER: You socialize with them occasionally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: Occasionally.

MR. ROGER: Did you ever discuss your experience in
this death penalty case with these defense attorneys after the
verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: The defense attormeys in
the case that I served --

MR. ROGER: No, I'm sorry.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: -- or the cnes that I
knew?

MR. ROGER: Right.

FROSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: I don’'t think so.

MR. ROGER: Do you think that you would have had any
problem in discussing that with them?

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR BROWN: No, I don’t.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. I pass for cause.

THE COURT: Thank you. Questions, pase for cause?

M8. McMAHON: I have no gquestions of Mrs. Brown.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Pass for cause? All right.
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Ladies and gentlemen, rather than taking a recess
and coming back, let’s take our noon recess now. Let’s be
back about an hour from now, 12:30, And make sure you take
the pame seatsa; it‘s very important you take the same seat,
All right? 8o, look around you, where you are -- and Hank,
you might crowd a little more people into them when we come
back, if you can £it. You know, make sure they’re nice and
tight. And we’ll see everybody back at 12:30.

During this recess, I'm going to just leave and
admonish you. Don’t convergse among yourselves, with anyone
else about any subject connected with the trial. Don’t read,
watch, or listen to any report of or commentary on the trial
or any person connected with the trial by any medium of
information, including without limitation, newspapers,
television, or radio. And don‘t form or express any opinion
on any subject connected with the trial until the close is
finally submitted to you. We’ll be back at cne hour, 12:30.

{Court recessed at 11:28 a.m. until 12:30 p.m.)
{(Prospective Jury is not present)
THE COURT: Outside the presence of the jury we've

discussed in chambers about the people in the jury had certain

problems. Juror Number 317, Fellton Cross, we decided not to
excuge him until he took the stand. 1Is that correct?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: And Juror Number 385, who has heart
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digease and he's feeling tremendous pPresaure, we'’'ll excuse
him. I8 that correct?

MR. LaPORTA: VYes, Your Honor.

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And Juror Number 312, Chin Suk Farrell.
She has tremendous English problems, ghe can't understand
what’s happening, and wa'll excuse her, is that correct?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Is that correct, defense?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor --

MR. LaPORTA: Yea, Judge.

MS, MCMAHON: -- that's correct.

THE COURT: And Juror Number 314, Pred Schneiter, he
said he had a Family Court matter but I think I'm Just going
to ask him to continue that so we’ra not going to excuse him.

And Juror Number 375, he recently had surgery and
he’s under medication. I think we'll excuse him. Is that
corract?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Hemnor.

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, So you got that? This is
yes and no.

MR. LaFORTA: Yes, Judge. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. We're going to bring in the

jury now. Anything elee come before the Court, off the
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record?

MR. LaPORTA:

MR. ROGER:
THE COURT:

No, Judge.
No, Your Honor.

All right,

MR. SCHWARTZ: No, Judge.

MS. McMAHON:

THE COURT:

presence cof the jury.

No, Judge.

I mean on the record, outside the

Nothing?

{The Jury reconvened)

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
Vegaa?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
come from?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
was concerned, if you
PROSPECTIVE
District Court.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

I think Ma. Melissa --
JUROR JAIME: Jaime.

-~ Jaime. How long have you been in Las

JUROR JAIME: About six years.

And --
JUROR JAIME: Five yeara.

-- about five, gix years.

JUROR JAIME: Colorado.
And what did you do there
would?

JURCR JAIME: I worked at

Doing what?
JUROR JAIME: I did -- it
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Central Viclationa Bureau and it was just handling and
procesaling tickets.

THE COURT: OCkay. What do you do here now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIMB: I work at the Federal
Courthouse and T do -- I work the intake windew and I back up
for the file room and mail and whatever.

THE COURT: About how long have you been a faderal
employee then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Six years.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your husband do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: He’'s a painter.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR JAIME: There’a gix at home.

THE COURT: Too young to work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: 1I'm sorry?

THE COURT: Any that work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: ©No, no.

THE COURT: No. They’re all young, is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever baen in the
military?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR JAIME: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
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enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

couple of years ago.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

daliberation?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR JAIME: No.
Have you ever been a victim of a crime?

JUROR JAIME: Our house was broken in a

Never caught the individualse?
JUROR JAIME: No.

That's not going to the affect your

JUROR JAIME: No.

Have you or anyone closely associated

with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE
four yeara ago.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
different clansses.

THE COURT:

JURCR JAIME: My husband got a DUI about

Really? Here in town?

JUROR JAIME: Yesa.

And was it resolved in court --

JUROR JAIME: Yeah, he had to go --

-- like school or something like that?
JUROR JAIME: -- to a couple of

All right. The fact that he had that

unpleasant problem, that’s not going to affect your

deliberation? You don’t hold that against the State of

Navada, do you?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: No.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever served on a
jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: This would be my first
time.

THE COURT: All right. Will you be able to follow
my instructiona?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yes.

THE COURT: And as I paid, if you’'re picked as a
juror, this could ba a two-phase trial, In other words, the
first phase will be the trial phase. If you £ind the
defendant gullty of scme lesser included or not guilty, of
course, that completes the case.

However, if the jury finds the defendant guilty of
first degree murder, then the penalty phase kicks in. &and at
the penalty phase the jury decides the punishment that should
be imposed, either 1life with the possibility of parcle, life
without the possibility of parole, or the imposition of the
death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIMB: Yesa.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider each one of
these optiona?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yes.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn‘t be a fair and

impartial juror in this case?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: No.,

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Questiona, pass
for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

Good afternocn. In your questionnaire you
indicated, on page 15, when asked about your views in general
regarding the death penalty, you said you never thought about
it. Do you recall writing that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yeah.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: I just --

MR. SCHWARTZ: Go ahead.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: I just -- I guess I don't
really know that much about it --

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: -- go I couldn’t really
say. I mean I know you’re -- you can be sentenced to death,
but then I don‘t know what all that involves or --

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. Now, we’re not speaking
hypothatically. Now, you're golng to be -- if you’re selected
as a juror, you might be in a situation where you’re golng to
determine whether an individual lives or dise. Do you think
if you felt that the State had presented enocugh evidencs,
where the only appropriate verdict for these two killinge was

one that warranted the death penalty, could you, yourself,
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come in and vote death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. You sure about that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR JAIME: Yeah.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Questions, pags for cause?
MR. LaPORTA: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Ms. -- Mr, Lizotte, is it?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: Twenty years, sir.
THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: I work for a private

contractor at Nellis Air Force Base.

THE COURT: All right. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Does your wife work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: She’s a homemaker.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZCTITE: Two.

THE COURT: What do they do for a living?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LIZOTTE: One’'s a banker and cne’s

THE COURT: All right. You have a son or a daughter

cthat'e an inmate?
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PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
about it.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
this --
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR LiZOTTE: A eon.

And what was he convicted of?

JUROR LIZOTTE: Murder.

What’s his name?

JUROR LIZOTTE: Patrick,

Patrick Lizotte?

JUROR LIZOTTE: Mm-hmm.

How long ago was that?

JUROR LIZOTTE: So long I don't remember

You don‘t want to remember?
JUROR LIZOTTE: Yeah.

Of course, you know we have to go into

JUROR LIZOTTE: Yes, I know.
-- 1'm sorry. I mean it's basically --

it‘s a vary unfortunata situation that a father’s in, that his

son wae convicted of murder. 1Is that going to affect your

decision in this case?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR LIZOTTE: Yes, sir.
In what way?
JUROR LIZOTTE: I will not stand in

judgement of any man or a woman who has a pocesibility of being

in the same placs as my son.

THE COURT:

All right.
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MR. ROGER: Challenge for cause.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MR. LaPORTA: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Please report back to room

1013. The clerk will call ancther prospective jurer.
THE CLERK: Fellton Cross.
MR. LaPORTA: Badga number?
THE CLERK: 2317.

THE COURT: All right. Take that same seat there,

oir. How long have you been in Las Vegaa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: Twenty-eight years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living, Mr. Cross?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CROSS: I'm a cook.
THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: AL -- I‘ve had two joba,

Your Honor. I work at the Texas Hotel and Gambling Hall and 1

work at New Orleans -- New Orleans.

THE COURT: You have two full-time joba?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: I just got them, yes, sir.

THE COURT: When do you work? When do you have time

to do anything.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: Well, actually I work 2:00

to 10:00 at the Texas and --

THE COURT: Two in the afternoon until 10:00 at

night?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: And 11:00 to 7:00 in the
morning at the New Orleans. 8o, I just got off and I came
here. 1I've been trying toc see you, but --

THE COURT: Well, you know, I‘m a hard man to see.
I'm serry. But, what -- why did you want to talk to me?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: Well, to be totally
honeat, Your Honor, I‘m -- I just recently kind of changed my
life around with a lot of bad things that wae going on in the
past and I got saved, you know, as a Baptist and in the Bible
it preaches that no man, no matter what, you should -- you
can‘t judge -- you shouldn’t judge anyone, no matter what.
So, I -- even if I was selected as a juror I wouldn’'t pass
judgement. I wouldn’t even comment on it.

THE COURT: And your religion tells you that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: It’s in the Bible, Your
Honor. It says --

THE COURT: What do you mean? This whole country
could be in anarchy and you can’t judge? And how would
that -- how would that work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: You're not supposgsed to
judge no one, Your Honor., And that I just don‘t --

THE COURT: You know, I don’t want to bother this
man too much.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: -- I may make a mistake.

THE COURT: Why don‘t you take over the queationing,
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Mr. Schwartz, Mr. Schwartz, Mr. Roger.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CROSS: I might make a mistake
by --

MR. ROGER: Sir, under any circumstances, if you
were in a position, could you vote for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CROS8: No.

MR. ROGER: We’d challenge for cause, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: No objection.

THE COURT: Go back to room 1013. The clerk call
another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Patsy Grannan.

MR. LAaPORTA: Badge number?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: 318,

THE COURT: Well, it‘s on the thing there, it's
right on this list. You could just lock en the 1list, it‘s on
-- but maybe if from now on you should call the badge number

and the name to accommodates Mr. LaPorta. All right, Ma.

Clerk?
THE CLERK: I will.
THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Three and a half Years,
THE COURT: And where did you come from?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I came from Lawton,
Oklahoma.

THE COURT: All right. And how long did you live
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there?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR
THE COURT: Yeah.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR

air.

GRANNAN: In Lawton, Oklahoma?

GRANNAN: About twenty-five years,

THE COURT: All right. What did you do there right

before you left, did you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR

real estate broker.

GRANNAN: Well, part-time; I was a

THE COURT: All right. And then you decided to move

here, how long ago?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR

GRANNAN: Three and a half years.

THE COURT: What do you do here now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR
now,

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR

THE COURT: -- or

PROSPECTIVE JURCR

THE COURT: Semi,

PROSPECTIVE JURCR
later.

THE COURT: Good.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR

GRANNAN: I'm not doing anything

You just now locking for work --
GRANNAN: No.
are you retired or?

GRANNAN: Semi.

GRANNAN: I may go look for work

Ara you married?
GRANNAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Does your husband work?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, he does.

THE COURT: What does he do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: He works for the post
office.

THE COURT: Any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, I have three sons.

THE COURT: What do they do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: My oldest son is
currently unemployed. My middle son works for Delta Airlines.
My third son is in echool and works part-time.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been in the

military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you acqualnted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: My neighbor.

THE CQURT: What’s his name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: He’s a Metro -- let me
think of his last name -- Juarez [phonatic].

THE COURT: Oh. Well, the fact that your neighbor
is an officer, that’s not going to affect your deliberation in
thias caee?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: No.

THE COURT: Again, you're not to give greater walght

or lesger weight to a police officer’s testimony simply
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because they’re a police officer. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I know and I understand.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever been a victim
of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, I have.

THE COURT: In Lawtcn, Oklahoma?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: In Lawton, Oklahoma.
Not here, in Lawton, Oklahcma.

THE COURT: In Lawton. All right. Well, what type
of crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: Well, not me personally
but the family has. My Bson was robbed at gun point. I have
-= they had a few items stolen when they were young.

THE COURT: Okay. Did you have to appear in court
on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROCR GRANNAN: No, no on was ever
charged.

THE COURT: You never appeared. All right. The
fact that your son had that unpleasant experience, that’s not
going to affect your deliberation in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Ne, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever been closely
agsoclated with or ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: My son.

THE COURT: What was he arrested for?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

DUT.

THE COURT: All right. That was resolved in court?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:
out of court --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:
thing, so he went to the class.

THE COURT:
affect your deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

I think it wae resolved

-- and he went to the --

-- it was a one time

All right, And again, that’s going to

No.

THE COURT: Did you ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:
THE COURT: How many times?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

THE CQURT: In Lawton?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

Yes, I have.

One time,

Yes.

THE COURT: And what was it, criminal or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

It wae a criminal.

THE COURT: What was the charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:
THE COURT: All right.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN:

Grand theft,

Were you picked as a juror?

Yea, I wae.

THE COURT: Were you picked as foreperson?
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PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: No.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,
did the jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: All right. You know, in this case if
you’re picked as juror, it’ll -- it possibly could be two
phases., The first phase would be the trial phase. You’ll
hear testimony and you’ll hear instructions of law, you’ll
hear closing arguments. And you, if you’re picked as ona of
the jurors, along with the other jurors, are to determine the
guilt or innocence of the defendant. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes.

THE COURT: If you find that he’s not guilty or he’s
guilty of a lesser crime, that's -- completes the case.
However, 1f the jury finde he’s guilty of first degree murder
and first degree murder only, then it -- the second phase
kicke in. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And at the penalty phase, we call it,
you'll hear other evidence and testimony and you’ll give --
I‘ll give you further instructlons. You’ll hear other cleoseing
arguments. Then you'll go back and deliberate the penalty and
your opticns will be life with the possibility of parcle, life
without the possibility of parole, or imposition of the death
penalty. Do you understand that?
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PROSPI?;CTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, air,

THE COURT: Now, could you egqually consider each
cption?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: I think so.

THE COURT: All right. Any reason you couldn‘t be a
fair and impartial juror then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: No.

THE COURT: Thank you very much., Questions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: But, sir, could --

THE COURT: I know there‘s a but. I'm trying to get
out of it. All right, what‘s the problem? What‘s the but?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I have a sleter who's
very ill right now and she could pasa away within the next two
weeks, and I did write that on my questionnaire that I would
like to be free for her funeral if she should.

THE COURT: Okay. I certainly hope that never
happena --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I do, tco, and --

THE COURT: -- but we’ll certainly consider it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: -- but I don't know how
it would --

THE COURT: Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: -- weigh on my --

THE COURT: All right. Questions, paas for causae?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cause, Judge.

I-106

AA5304



w @ A W e W N

K B KB B R op
m &= W N +H O

16
17
18
13
20
21
22
23
24
25

THE COURT: Questions? Pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor, thank you.

Good afternoon, Mra. Grannan.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Hi.

M3, McMAHON: I reviewed your gquestionnaire and I do
have a few questions for you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CGRANNAN: Okay.

MS. McMAHON: The Judge just asked you if, in fact,
this case should reach the penalty phase, could you equally
coneider all opticns.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Mm-hmm,

MS. McMAHON: And your response -- your response wag
that I think so.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Mm-hmm.

MS. McMAHON: On the questionnaire that you
completed and question number €8, you wrote, all murder
convictions should receive death or life without parole.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Mm-hmm.

MS. McMAHON: That obviocusly was your feeling when
you were filling out the questicnnaire. That‘s changed as a
regult of being here this morning?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: No. I think I would
look at all the avidence and what happened in this murder
case. And if this person was convicted and he did it in cold
blood, then I would have no problems with the life without
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parole or the death penalty.

MS., McMAHON: Would you equally consider life --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes, I would.

M3. McMAHON: -- with parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Yes.

M3. McMAHON: Question 75 asks of your view and it
said, the question -- I’ll phrase it for you since you don‘t
have a copy in front of you -- while asking questions
concerning your views about the death penalty and the penalty
of life in prison with or withcut the possibility of parole
suggests to you that the defendant must be guilty. Now, you
anawered that no, but then you wrote, law says , quotation
marks, "innocent until proven guilty.* Do you believe that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: Yes, I do.

MS. MCMAHON: In question number 97, the question
asks, without having heard any evidence in this case, what are
your general thoughte about the benefit of imposing a sentence
of life with the possibility of parole on a person convicted
of murder in the first degree? And again, you wrote, no
sentence of poseible parcle for a person who killed two other
persons.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR GRANNAN: I‘m sorry, would you say
that again, please?

M3. McMAHON: Your response was, Nno sentence of

possible parole for a person who killed two other persons.
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But, in fact, you could now, sitting here, consider equally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I think so, especially
with the background.

MS. McMAHON: O©On the explanation sheet --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Mm-hmm.

MS. McMAHON: You had a note that the son of a
friend of youre was shot and murdered.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Mm-hmm.

MS. McMAHON: And that it could affect your
judgement. Certainly that was a tragic thing. How do you
feel it could affect your judgement in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: Well, I really, you
know, don’t know if it would affect my judgement in this case.
But, it was a tragic thing and it still remains with me.

And also, my husband works for the post office and a
man was killed there, so those things have bsen on my wmind for
some period of time.

M3. McMAHON: And do you think that the pain and the
loss and the feelings that you had in those situations are
going to carry over this trial and affect your judgement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GRANNAN: I don’t think so, no.

MS. McMAHON: Thank you for answering my questions.

THEE COURT: Paas for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: All right.
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Mr. Delacy, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yea, sir.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Eighteen years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Ingurance adjuaster.

THE COURT: Are you married?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your wifs do, if ghe works?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DELACY: She’s -- works for UMC.

THE COURT: As a nurse?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: No, she works in the
billing department.

THE COURT: Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Four.

THE COURT: Any that work?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes. My oldest son’s a
United States Air Force recruiting officer. My mecond son‘s a
respiratory therapist. My third eon’s in banking, and my
daughter’s a secretary.

THE COURT: All right. A secretary for who, what
company?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DELACY: Air Systems.

THE COURT: OCkay, Have you ever bean in the
military?
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PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
burglary.
THE COURT:
individuals?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JURCR DELACY: No.

Are you acqguainted with anybody in law

JUROR DELACY: No.

Have you ever been a victim of a crime?
JUROR DELACY: Yea.

What was that?

JUROR DELACY: Home burglary and an auto

All right. Did they ever catch the

JUROR DELACY: No.
The fact that you had those two

unpleasant experiences, that's not going to affect your

deliberation in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JURCR DELACY: No.

Have you or anyone closely assoclated

with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR DELACY: No.

You ever serve on a jury before?
JUROR DELACY: Yes.

How many timesg?

JUROR DELACY: Once.

Criminal or civil caee?

JUROR DELACY: Criminal.
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THE COURT: What was the charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Domestic battery,

THE COURT: All right. That was here ipn lLas Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes.

THE COURT: And you were picked as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes.

THE COURT: Were ycu picked as foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DELACY: No.

THE COURT: You deliberated the cage?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yeas.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the vardict was,
did the jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. That second aspect of this casae,
the first phase would be the trial phase. If and only if Mr.
Thomas is found guilty of first degree murder, then the
penalty phase kicks in. The jury is the one that imposes a
penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes.

THE COURT: And there’s three options in the State
of Nevada -- under our laws, the State of Nevada, there’s
three opticna: Life with the possibility of parcle, life
without the possibility of parole, and the imposition of the
death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes,
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THE COURT: And again, you’ll have further
testimony, evidence, instructions as exactly what the law is
on the penalty phase, closing arguments, and you’ll go back
and deliberate. We just want to be assured that you could
equally consider each option, is that -- could you equally
conslder each option?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, why not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Becauge I don‘t believe
in the last two options you offered.

THE COURT: I forgot what it was. What don’t --
what don't you belleve in?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: I believe if ha's
convicted he should die.

THE COURT: No watter what the background is? No
matter -- any of the circumstances?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR DELACY: No.

THE COURT: 1Is that a religious belief you held
or ==

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: No.

THE COURT: -~ where do you get this belief from? I
mean, this is not the law of the United States, this is not
the law of the states of Nevada or any other states. where do
you get this notion?

PROBPECTIVE JURCR DELACY: Where do I get this
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notion?

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: He's not going teo provide
any economic or social benefit to socilety any further.

THE COURT: The State wants anything or voir dire
him or what?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Mr. Delacy, you understand that in
the State of Nevada we have certain categories of murder,
first degree and second degree. And it would only be if a
jury found the defendant guilty of first degree murder that
the jury would have te determine the punishment?

DROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Yes, gir.

MR. SCHWARTZ: OQkay. And the legislature has
provided punishments of the three possible categories: Life
imprisonment with parole, life impriscnment without parole,
and the death penalty. And the reason for that is every
murder --and that would be poseible punishment for first
degree murder -- every first degree murder is different, okay?
People kill people for different reasons, unfortunately.

Now, can you envision a circumstance where somebody
could have been convicted of first degree murder but yet
warrant consideration for life imprisonment as opposed teo
death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR DELACY: Na.

MR. SCHWARTZ: I have no further questions, Judge.
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MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to room 1013.
The clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Craig Watral.

THE COURT: Cralg Watral.

THE CLERK: Badge 320.

THE COURT: Take that same seat.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: How long have you been in Laa Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Nineteen years, sir.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: I work for Mirage Resorts
as a casino pit manager.

THE COURT: All right. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: Does your wife work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, she does not. Now,
she’s back in aschool.

THE COURT: All right. Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: We have two sons; one is
23, he’'s a valet parker, and another is in high school, 16.

THE COURT: Oh. Have you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, eir.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law

enforcement?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: My wife has a cousin
who’s a homicide detective in Seattle.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: I think I’'ve met him
once.

THE COURT: The fact -- if that’s the case, you
know, it‘’e not going to affect your deliberaticn in this case,
im ie?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, sir.

THE COURT: You’re not going to give greatar weight
or lesser weight to a police officer’s testimony simply
becauge they’'ra a police officer, are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, air.

THE COURT: Have you been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, @ir.

THE COURT: Have you ever served on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WATRAL: Yes, I've served on two;
two different jurieas.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: We did reach a verdict in
both cases.

THE COURT: All right. The first one, was it
criminal or civil case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: It was criminal.

THE COURT: All right. What was the charge?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: It wae assault.

THE COURT: All right. And you picked as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Correct.

THE COURT: You weren’t foreman, is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, I was not.

THE COORT: But the jury reached a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Yes.

THE COURT: The second one was a criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: It was criminal also. I
think it was a stolen auto.

THE COURT: You were picked as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WATRAL: Picked as a juror, not as
a foreman: we did reach a verdict.

THE COURT: And you reached a verdict. All right.
Were you ever the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: I -- ne, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Were you ever closely
assoclated or were you ever arrested for crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Yes, sir, I was arrested
once.

THE COURT: What was that for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: It was actually failura
to appear.

THE COURT: Oh, on a traffic ticket or something?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: VYes, it'g --
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THE COURT: All rxight. That's not going to affect
your deliberation.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: No, sir.

THE COURT: I‘m sure that was resolved and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Twenty yeare ago, yes,
sir.

THE COURT: All right. Twenty yeare ago. That
other aspect of the possible two phases -- phase one would be
the trial phase and if the jury found the defendant guilty of
first degree murder, then it would have the second phase, the
penalty phase and they would impose punishment and the -- as
our lawa of the State of Nevada suggest that there's three
opticne: Life with the poesibility of parcle, life without
the posasibility of parole, and the imposition of the death
penalty. And it’s totally up to the jury to come back with
one cf those options. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: <Could you equally consider all of those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: I could,

THE COURT: Thank you, very much. Is there any
reason you couldn’t be a fair and impartial juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WATRAL: I don't believe there is,
no.

THE COURT: All righe.
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MR. ROGER:

THE COURT:

MS. McMAHON:

Honor,

THE COURT:

Cindy Miller.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Mm-hmm, yes.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

Grand Hotel in hotel operations.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE
his wife.
THE COURT:
Lance Malone, I think

commissionar, that’s not going to affect the deliberation in

Pass for cause.
{Questions by the defense?

We would pass for cause also, Your

All right. Thank you.

How long have you been in Las Vegas?
JUROR MILLER: Seven years.

All right. wWhat do you do for a living?
JUROR MILLER: I work over at the MGM

Are you marrled?

JUROR MILLER: No, just fiance,

Ckay. Children?

JUROR MILLER: Nope.

Have you ever been in the military?
JUROR MILLER: No.

Are you acquainted with anybody in law

JUROR MILLER: Lance Malone, I work with

All right. The fact that you work with

he‘s an officer and then he was elected
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this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No, I've only met him

THE COURT: You’re not -- yeah. You’‘ze not going to

glve greater weight or lesser weight to a police officer's

testimony simply because they’'re a police officer, are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been a victim of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: A car -- stolan car.

THE COURT: All right. Did they aver catch the

individuala?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: You never had to appear in court?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: And that’'a not going to affect your

deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated

with you ever bmen arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: Have you served on a jury before?
PROSPECTIVE JURQOR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: Will you be abla to follow my

instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yas,
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THE COURT: And again, that second possible
eltuation that may arise in this case, if and only if you find
the -- if the jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree
murder, then we have a penalty phase. If you don’'t find him
guilty of £irst degree murder or leaser or not guilty, then we
don’t have it. You understand that, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yes.

THE COURT: So we’'re only talking about thae
possibilicty that if you do find him guilty of first degree
murder, we go into the penalty phage, all right? At the
penalty phase, as our law requires, the jury gets punishment.
It could either be life with the pomsibility of parole, life
without the possibility of parcle, or the impositicn of the
death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yes.

THE COURT: And could treat each option equally and
decide with the other fellow Jurors what the proper punishment
could be?

PROCSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yes.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be a fair and
impartial juror on this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Questionas, pass
for cause?

MR. RCGER: Yes. Good afternoon, Ms. Miller. In
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your guestionnaire you indicated that you had really never
given a lot of thought about the death penalty prior to
filling this out, so I would like to ask you couple of
questions. What was your firgt impression when you learned
that this was a capital murder case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Just through education, I
knew that if it -- if it’s murder case that that is a
possibility of an outcome.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Do you feel that you’re well
suited to make that type of decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: If provided the correct
evidence I feel I could make a decision.

MR. ROGER: Okay. But you would agree that it’as a
pretty onerous task that we’re placing upon the jury, would
you agree with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Well, yes. I mean it’s
an important decision.

MR, ROGER: Do you feel that under the appropriate
circumstances, you personally could vete for the death
penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yes.

MR. ROGER: You wrote in your questionnaire that in
response to one of the questions that it would be important to
hear from doctors. Do your remember that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Well, they ware
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menticning about background and eituations like that, and I
wasn‘t sure of what direction they were going they were going
those questions. In which case, if they were going in the
direction that -- and sometimes they bring in that it might be
something for, vou know, like mind-wise that the whole
gitvation occurred. Well, that background situation in which
case, if that was the direction they were going, I would
expect to hear from legal physicians backing up that evidence.

MR, ROGER: Do yocu believe that either psychologists
or psychiatriste have any place in the courtroom cencerning
whether or not the death penalty is appropriate?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR MILLER: I helieve they have a
place if it's part of the evidence being provided and if
they’re backing some type of evidence.

MR. ROGER: All right., Do you feel that you're a
pretty good judge of character?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: Are you the type of person who could
weigh the testimony of a peychiatrist or psychologist and make
you own decision as to whether or not his conclusion or his
reagoning is valid?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: I don’t understand that
question.

MR, ROGER: Would you automatically accept what the

psaychiatrist or psycholegist were to say simply because of his
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educational background, or would you just take it and coneider
it and weigh the pros and cone of what he had to say and make
your own decision?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MILLER: I wouldn’t take his word
for it, no. I would -- you know, I mean I would listen to
what he had to say as part of the evidence and then look at it
all in a whole.

MR. ROGER: So you wouldn’t automatically accept
what he had to say?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Pass for cause.

THE COURT: All right. Any questions or pass for
cauge?

M3. McMAHON: Just briefly, Your Honor, if I may.

Good afterncon, Ma. Miller. I have only question of
you. On the questionnaire that you filled out, question 71,
sald when a defendant is charged with a crime, do you think he
should have to prove his innccence, and you marked it no. But
there was a lined area underneath and you wrote, we mugt prove
defendant guilty. What did you mean by we?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: The -- like in this case,

the State.

MS. McMAHON: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: 1It's their
responeibility --
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MS. McMAHON: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: -- to provide enough
evidence.

MS, McMAHON: You didn’t see that ag part of the
jury function?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MILLER: No, no.

MS8. McMAHON: Okay. Thank you. I have no more
questions.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MILLER: I meant like as the court
system’s responsibility.

MS. MCMAHON: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Pasa for cause?

M3, McMAHON: Pase for cause, Your Honor,

THE COURT: All right.

THE CLERK: Angela McCall.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes, s8ir.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegasg?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Ten years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: I work for Las Vegas
Plant Deaign.

THE COURT: All right.

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: I do plants for
conventions and home maintenance --

THE COURT: Okay.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: -- urban homes.

THE COURT: Plants like --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Mm-hmm. Live plants,
yes.

THE COURT: Maybe you’ll end up another Martha
Stewart.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR McCALL: Never know.

THE COURT: Possibly, right? Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE GUROR MeCALL: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: What does your husband do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: He works at the Legacy
Golf Course.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes, one son. He’s a
graduate from high school. He works at Boomtown.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you avar been in the
military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No, air.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcemant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Just back in up-state New
York --

THE COURT: OCkay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: -- where I was from.

THE COURT: With some acquaintances therxre?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yeah, relatives in the
pelice force, yes.

THE COURT: All right., The fact that back in up-
atate New York, you have some relatives, acquaintances, that's
not going to affect your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No, not at all,

THE COURT: -- deliberation in this case? You’re
not geoing to give greater weight or lesser weight to a police
officer’s testimony simply because they're a police officer,
are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No, not at all,

THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes.

THE COURT: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Stolen car.

THE COURT: All right. They ever catch the
individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No.

THE COURT: That’s not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MCCALL: Not at all.

THE COURT: Have you ever been closely associated
with or ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MeCALL: I believe my brother was
picked up for DUI about --
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THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: -- seven yesars ago in New
York.

THE COURT: But that’s not going to affect your
delibaraticn?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No, not at all.

THE COURT: Did you ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: No.

THE COURT: Will ycu be able to follow my
instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes, airx.

THE COURT: You understand that Mr. Marlo Thomas
here is the defendant in this case and he’'s here by whatevar
charging document. 1It’s an information, it‘s a piece of paper
that the clerk will read to the jury when we impanel the jury
and it’'s a mere charging documents. It’s not svidence, do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes miyr, I do.

THE COURT: Do you understand that Mr. Thomas is
presumed to be imnocent until proven guilty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes.

THE COURT: You understand the State of Nevada has
the burden of proving the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable
doubt?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: That's correct, yes.
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THE COURT: Do you follow all those principles of
law --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yea, I do.

THE COURT: -~ and you agree with them, is that
correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: And if you -- if the jury feels that the
State has met their burden and they feel like the first degree
murder has been proved, then a second phase kicks in as the
penalty phase. And the jury decides punishment in a murder
case, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And you have the option of picking --
after hearing testimony, evidence, further instructiona,
arguments, back and deliberate, forms of verdicts, you'll have
everything and you’ll have the option, along with the other
jurors, of deciding whether life with the poesibility of
parole, life without the pegsibility of parole or the
imposition of the death penalty will be imposed. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Could you egually consider those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: Not all three, no.

THE COURT: What can’t you consider?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: ULife with poselbility of
parcle. On a murder one, I just can‘t see it on a double
homicide.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR McCALL: I just can’t parole
anycne. I know I couldn’t.

THE COURT: All right. Does the State want to go
into that?

MR. SCHWARTZ: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Does the defense want to?

MR. LaPORTA: We would challenge for cause, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to room 1013.
The clerk call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: John Cortez, badge number 322.

THE COURT: I think I'm going to switch ways of
doing this. You’ra Mr. John Cortez?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Ye=s, sir.

THE COURT: You know, 1f you’re picked as a juzrorx,
Mr., Cortez, and you find the defendant guilty of first degree
murder, then the pecond phase kicks in. Do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CORTBZ: Yea,

THE COURT: And then you’ll have the option of
finding the defendant guilty of first degree murder -- or,
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excuse me, you‘ll already have him found guilty of first
degree murder, but to impose a penalty of life with the
poseibility of parcle, life without the poesibility of parole,
or death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Could you equally conagider all those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. And how long have you been
in Las Vegaa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Forty-one years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: I work for the Department
of Transportatien.

THE COURT: Okay. Doing what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: I‘m a supervisor for the
line atriping company.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Yes, air,

THE COURT: Does your wife work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: She just started with
Sprint.

THE COURT: Sprimt. Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Three.

THE COURT: Any that work?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No.

THE COURT: All right. You ever been in the
military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Yea, sir.

THE COURT: Who is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: I have a cousin that's --
worked for Metro, a brother-in-law who works for Metro, and a
cousin that works for the Highway Patrol.

THE COURT: Okay. Here in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ; Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. And what are their names?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: My brother-in-law ia
Steve Gamble [phonetic] -- excuse me. And my cousin is Mark
Montoya [(phonetic],

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you have some
relatives working in law enforcement, is that -- that’s not
going to affect your deliberation in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: You understand you’re not to give
greater weight or lesser weight to a police officer’'s
testimony simply becauss they’re a police officer. Do you

understand that?
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PROSPECTIVE JURQR CORTEZ: Yes.

THE COURT: Have you been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sair,

THE COURT: Did you ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Any reason ycu couldn’t be a fair and
impartial jurer then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Questions, pass
for cause?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cauase, Judge.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MS. McMARHON: 1T have a few questions, please, Your
Honor. Thank you.

Good afternoon, Mr. Cortez.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Good afternoon.

M3. McMAHON: The Judge just asked you about the
family member that you have in law enforcement, your brother-
in-law and two cousina., In your questionnaire you had listed
your relationship to them, and in response to the question as
to whether those relationships might possibly influence you,

you responded that you might be influenced to view the case
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from their perspective., 1s this based on conversations or
experiences you've had with them in the past or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Well, that’s just based
on if I -- if I were to speak to them regarding this case or
any case. It might.

MS. McMAHON: It might be?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Might be.

MS. McMAHON: Thank you. I don't want to beat a
dead horae, okay. Let's talk a little bit about might. My
client, Marlo Thomas, is sitting here facing charges of murder
and if convicted possible severe penalties. If you were in
his placea, how would you feel about a juror who might be
influenced? Would you want to be there?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Probably not,

MS. McMAHON: Probably not. Have you been a juror
before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No.

M3, McMAHON: Okay. And have you had any experience
in the legal system?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. The reason I'm asking was that
in the pection of the questionnaire that asked you about your
opinion of attorneys, it seemed to be your opinion that
therea’s not enough integrity. 1Is that equal for defense

attorneys and prosecutors or ==

I-134

AA5332



Nt A W N

10
1}
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: I think, like the other
jurer, it’'s based on a lot of Hollywood influence.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. O©On the questionnaire, there’s
the biblical quotation of an eye for an eye, and your response
was you hold with what the Bible says in all matters. In that
regard, if you found -- you were on the jury and the jury
found my client guilty, does that mean that you would
automatically vote for the death penalty without considering
the other two alternatives?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: No, I don'‘t think believe
it means that.

MS. McMAHON: What does it mean then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: I would -- I would
consider what the evidence -- the evidence -- based on the
evidence presented.

MS. McMAHON: On the -- going back again to the
questicnnaire in another area, the questionnaire tells you
that you must consider the defendant’s background in
determining the appropriate sentence and asked whather you
could consider those factors. And you marked possibly to --
one is could you consider the terms of the death penalty, and
could you consider it in terms of life with the poasibility of
parole, life without the poseibility of parole. After being
here in Court this morning and listening to the Judge and

hearing the responses and the guestions that have been
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angwered, if you were chosen on the jury, would you, in fact,
meet that duty, would you consider all of those factors in
determining the appropriate sentence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Yeah, I balieve I would.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. Going back to your probably,
okay, and this is not to embarrass you, Mr. Cortez, you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Sure.

MS. McMAHON: Would it be fair, do you believe, to
state that given your family relationships with law
enforcement and the possibility that you might be influenced
by them or their way of thinking, that you would not be a fair
and impartial juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORTEZ: Do I think I would not be
a fair? No, I don‘t -- I don’t think that. I think that I
would be a fair and impartiai.

MS. McMAHON: You think you would be fair and
impartial. Then, in regard to my earlier quasticn, if you
were sitting where my client, Marlo Thomas, is sitting right
now, would you want someone like you on the jury?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CORTEZ: Yes.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. I have no further questions.
Pass for cause, Judge.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Koran, how long have you

been in Las Vegas?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Four years, sir.

THE COURT: And where did you come from?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR KORAN: From Califormia,

THE COURT: What did you do in California as far as
work was concerned before you left?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Administrative.

THE COURT: Where -- what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: In health care
administration.

THE COURT: All right., What do you do here, now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: I work at Siexrra Health
8ervices in health and life insurance sales.

THE COURT: All right. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No, divorced.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Two.

THE COURT: Any they old enough to work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybedy in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR XORAN: No.

THE COURT: Ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.
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THE COURT: Have you or anycne closely associated
with you ever arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.

THE COURT: Bver serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.

THE COURT: Ckay. If you're picked as a juror, the
-- might be divided into two phrases, the trial phase and the
penalty phase. 1If at the trial if you determine the defendant
is guilty of first degree murder, then the penalty phase kicka
in. The jury sets punishment according teo law. You have
three options, life with the possibkility of parcle, life
without the possibility of parole, and the death penalty. Do
you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KDRAN: yes.

THE COURT: <Could you equally consider each of those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR KORANt Yes.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be a failr and
impartial jurox?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No.

THE COURT: Thank you, Questions, pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Thank you. How do you pronounce your
last name, ma’am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR XORAN: Koran.

MR. RCGER: Ms, Koran, you have a friend who is an
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attorney here in town?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No, he’s not a friend at
all, He's an acquaintance I met once and spoke to him for
about one minute at a parry.

MR. ROGER: Okay. And that was Mace Yampolsky?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Mm-hmm.

MR. ROGER: But you have a former boyfriend who ig
an attorney, is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Yes.

MR. ROGER: Is he an attorney here in town?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: No, in California.

MR, ROGBR: What type of attorney?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Employment for employers,

you know, he represents the employer in discrimination issues.

MR. ROGER: Okay. 1I'd like to talk to you a little
bit about the death penalty and what you might be facing as a
potential juror. Now, how do you feel about being asked to
make that type of decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Well, I feel that it would

have to be, you know, an important decision, that I would have

to make, and that with that I would have to consider both

mitigating and aggravating circumstances and all the facts and

evidence presented.
MR. ROGER: If you were a legislator and the

decision was solely up to you, would we have capital
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punishment in the state of Nevada?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: yes,

MR. RCGER: Why?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Because I believe that
some first degree murders do warrant the death penalty,

MR. ROGER: 1In answering questionse in your
questionnaire, you talked about the death penalty only being
appropriate for the worst type of crime.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR KORAN: Mm-hmm.

MR, ROGER: When you used the term crime, were you
talking about murder or sexual assault?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR KORAN: First degree murder.
First degree murder only.

MR. ROGER: OCkay. Are you open to all three forma
of punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR KORAN: Yes, I am.

MR. ROGER: Assuming the circumstances ware
appropriate, could you perscnally vote for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Yes.

MR. ROGER: But would you agree that it is a
difficult decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Yes.

MR. ROGER: Yet, you are willing to make that
commitment that if we prove the circumatances to you, you

would vote for the death penalty?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Yea.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Pase for cause.

THE COURT: Quesations, paess for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Just one, Your Honor. @ood afternoon.
I have one question. On the form where it asks you to -- do
your comments about your opinions of attorneys.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: Mm-hmm.

MS. McMAHON: COkay. Always a sensitive area, your
opinion of the defense attorneys was that they had a job to do
and it was important. Concomitantly, your opinion of public
defenders was that they don’t want their job. Now, Mr.
LaPorta and I are public defenders and my concern about that
ie if you apsume we’re doing something we don’‘t want, will
that have a negative impact on how you leook at my client?
Will that harm him in your deliberations?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KORAN: I don‘t think they’re
ralated.

M3. McMAHCN: Thank you. That was the only question
I had.

THE COURT: Pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 1In the law, ladies and gentlemen, we
have what we call peremptory challenges. Wa've completed the
firet initial questioning of the jury. Each side has a

certain number of peremptory challenge that they would either
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exercise their peramptory challenge and excuse without any
cause or they could waive their peremptory challenge. So,
we’re going to go through that and we’res going to pick some
altarnate jurors and hopefully complete the selection of the
jury shortly.

So, we’ll go for some peremptory challenges now.
The state could exercise its first peremptory challenge if it
sees fit.

MR. ROGER: Judge, we‘ll thank and sxcuse Juror
Number 307, Melissa Jaime.

THE COURT: All right. Will Melisaa please report
back to room 10137 The clerk call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Linda Pliparinen --

THE COURT: Linda -~

THE CLERX: Badge 324.

THE COURT: Linda, please take that same seat. How
long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Almost four years.

THE COURT: And where did you come £rom?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Northern Michigan.

THE COURT: What did you do there before you want --
came here to Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I wae a nuraa.

THE COURT: And what do you do hera, now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I’'m a nurse.
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THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: THC Hospital.

THE COURT: What is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: THC Hospital.

THE COURT: Where 1s that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Transitional Hospital
Corporation.

THE COURT: Where is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: 1It‘s on West Sahara.

THE COURT: Never heard of it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: 1It’s a long-texrm
acute hospital.

THE COURT: Getting to be a big town now, you don’t
hear of hospitala. You married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes.

THE COURT: What does ycur husband do?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PIIPARINEN: He’s a social worker.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: You acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Priends back in
Michigan.
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THE COURT: That’s not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: You'zre not going to give greater weight
or lesser welght to a police officer's testimony eimply
becausa they’re a police officer, are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely assoclated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: Ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: No.

THE COURT: If you’‘re picked as a juror, ma‘am, you
know, there might be twe phases., The first phase for -- just
for -- I just call it the trial phase, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: If the jury finds the defendant and only
if they find the defendant guilty of first degree murder, then
the penalty phase kicks in, right? And at the penalty phase
the jury determines the punishment, not the Judge, it‘s the
jury. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes.

THE COURT: And the three coptions are life with the
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peseibility of parcle, life without the poseibility of parole,
and the imposition of the death penalty. Do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes.

THE COURT: Could you consider each option equally
and give it weight you deemed necessary and make a decigion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I would have
difficulty with parole on first degree murder.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm. Well, all we’re asking is to
keep an open mind, and listen to the facts, and determine --

PROSFECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I could do that.

THE COURT: -- at least could you consider all the
options and then make a determination?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I could do that.

THE COURT: All right. Questions, pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cause, Judge.

THE COURT: AQuestions, pass for causa?

M3, McMAHON: Juet briefly. Good afterncen.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIFARINEN: Hi.

M3. McMAHON: 1It’s the question about the
alternative punishments. It was my pense there was a little
bit of hesitancy. If, in fact, you sat on the jury and if, in
fact, my client was found guilty, would you equally conaider
all forms of punishment, that is, equal consideration to 1life

with the possibility of parcle, the game consideration you
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would give to life without or the death penalty? Can you meet
that requiremenc?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I would be blased
against 1ife with the option of parole. I would have -- I
mean, I would have to -- I would have to work into considering
that equally,

MS. McMAHON: Your Honer, I would move to excuse the
juror for cause.

MR. ROGER: Judge, I have a few questicns.

Ma'am, you understand that at the present time you
know absolutely nothing about this case, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIFPARINEN: Just what we were
told and what I read in the paper.

MR. ROGER: But you know nothing about the
defendant’s background, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Correct.

MR. ROGER: You know nothing about the crime except
you may have heard, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: That is correct.

MR. ROGER: Are you willing to listen to all the
facts and circumstances about the crime and the defendant’s
background in determining what punishment is appropriate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I'm willing to
liasten.

MR. ROGER: Are you -- do you have an open mind?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I think I have an
open mind.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Understand that all of us have
our own particular vents and feelings that come in to the
court, but what we’re trying to find is people who are willing
to give both sidea a fair shake. Are you that type of person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes, I am.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Are you willing to reserve your
judgement until after you’ve heard all the evidence and the
argumente by the different sides?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes,.

MR. ROGER: As you pit here now, are you willing to
give for the defense a fair shake?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: I think our purpose
is to hear what happened and make a judgement on the evidence
that’s presented. 1I‘ve never been on jury before, but I think
that that’s our responsibility and I think I can do that. I
do have a personal -- I mean, I just know that parole on some
crimes is something that I‘ve always wondered about, and it's
something that is kind of like on a level of -- I gometimes
don’t understand how that happens. So that -- that‘s what you
-- that's where my questioning of considering the three
options comes in.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Are you willing resesrve judgement

until you find out what parole is all about?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Yes.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Judge, I would oppoee the
challenge for cause.

THE COURT: Again, are you willing to consider
equally, after all the evidences and all the options, life
with the possibility of parole, life without the possibility
of parole, and the imposition of the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Without knowing any
information, if I were -- if the -- if the verdict was first
degree murdar, I could not consider with parole,

THE COURT: All right. Please report back to room
1013

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR PIIPARINEN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Clerk call ancther prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Willie Luster, badge 325,

THE COURT: Mr. Luaster, please take that same geat.
Again, wa're here to question you regarding your
qualifications as a juror. And if, you know, if you’re picked
as a juror, the first phase is a trial phase, do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And if you f£ind and only if you £ind
that the defendant is guilty of first degree murder, then we
go into the second phase, which is the penalty phase. Do you
understand chat?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: I understand that, eir.

THEE COURT: And then it‘s incumbent or it‘s up the
jury. I don’t impose punishment as Judge. It’e the jury that
imposes punishment. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Yes, eir,

THE COURT: And under our laws of Nevada, the
legislature, the Governor signed into law, it is basically you
have three options: Life with the possibility of parole, life
without the poasibility of parole, or the imposition of the
death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider all thege
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: No, sir.

THE COURT: Why not? What can’t you consider?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: The parcle part -- the
parole.

THE COURT: Life --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: With parole.

THE COURT: =-- with parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: In other words, you would only consider
life without parole or death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Both of theose two.

THE COURT: What?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Both of the last two, but
not with parocle.

THE COURT: You wouldn't consider life -- you
wouldn't consider giving a person convicted of first degree
murder life with the possibility of parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: No, sir.

THE COURT: Why not? 1Is that religious thing or is
it something --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Because I think he --
once he's taken a life he -- he shouldn’t be free again.

THE COURT: But our law, though, says that you’'re to
consider all three --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: The law --

THE COURT: =-- because every case is different.
Every case is different.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: Wall, I don‘t --

THE COURT: The age, the background of people, what
happened in the case, it’s all different.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: I don’‘t agree with the
law.

THE COURT: Pardon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LUSTER: I don‘t agree with that
part of the law.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have anything to say?

MR. LaPORTA: No, Your Honor. Ifll pass -- I‘1ll --

I-150

AA5348



w

v O 3 & e

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

we have no problems with this juzor being axcused.

THE COURT: You challenge for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. SCHWARTZ: No objection.

THE COURT: Please report back to room 1013. The
clerk will call ancther proaspective juroz.

THE CLERK: Deborah Smith.

THE COURT: Deborah Smith.

THE CLERK: Badge 326.

THE COURT: All right. Take that same seat, Ms.
Smith. Again, we’'ll question you as your gqualifications as a
-- as a juror. If the jury determines at the trial phaese that
the proper thing to do was find the defendant guilty of first
degree murder, then we go into the penalty phase. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SMITH: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: At the penalty phase we have three
options under our law: Life with the possibility of parocle,
1ife without the possibility of parcle, and the death penalty.
Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SMITH: Mm-hmm. Yes.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider all of those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SMITH: No., The victims weren't

given an option.
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THE COURT: Well, the victims weren’t given an
option, but our law the jury an optien of determining what
penalty is.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SMITH: Right.

THE COURT: If we just had one rigid rule, I don’t
know if that would be good. We’d have to have these options
available and the jury, after hearing all the evidence, would
consider thoge options. Could you -- you couldn't equally
conaider them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SMITH: No.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to room 1013,
Clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Esther Cordova, number 327.

THE COURT: Ms. Cordova, again your qualifications
are if the jury finds the defendant of first degree murder
then there’'s a penalty phase and you have those three opticna.
Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CORDOVA: Yesg.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider those
optionse?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes, I could.

THE COURT: All right. How leong have you been in
Las Vegas?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Twenty out of the past
twenty-two years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: I’'m a casino cage
manager at Fltzgerald’s Casino.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, sir.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: One daughter, she’a a
homemaker.

THE COURT: You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, I'm not.

THE COURT: Have you been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Home burglary that was
not resolved.

THE COURT: Never caught the individuvals?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: And domestic violence.

THE COURT: All right. That’s not going te affect
your deliberation in this caase, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, air.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely agsociated

with you ever been arrested for a crime?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: I was a on a DUI about
twelve to fifteen years ago.

THE COURT: All right. Was ic a misdemeanor DUI?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yas. It was settled out
of court.

THE COURT: Did you have to go to schoeol? All
right. That’s not going te affect your deliberations.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, sir.

THE COURT: You don’t hold that against the State of
Nevada, do you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. You ever serva on a jury
before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes, twice.

THE COURT: First time, wae it a criminal or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Criminal.

THE COURT: What was the charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Burglary.

THE COURT: Okay. Were you picked as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yea, I was.

THE COURT: You dellberated the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes, I did.

THE COURT: Were you pilcked as foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: No, sir.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,
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did you reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: The second one, was it civil eor
criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: It was a felon in
posegession of a firearm.

THE COURT: All right. Criminal. Were you picked
as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And were you picked as foreperson?

PROSPECTIVB JUROR CORDOVA: No.

THE COURT: You deliberated the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,
did your jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be a falr and
impartial juror in thia case?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CORDOVA: No, sir,

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Questiona, pase
for cause.

MR, ROGER: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: I have a few questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Certainly.

MR. LaPORTA: Ms. Cordova, good afternoon. I want
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to get into a couple of questions that you answered in this
and this gives me an opportunity to ask you about some things
that people -- or, the attorneys in this case have not agked.
And that is, you anawered question 91, part A, B and C. And
to refresh your memory it saild, do you feel that if one is
convicted of first degree murder, intended to do exactly what
the state claims he did, should be aentenced to death without
consideration of background information. And then B waa, life
in prison without the possibility of parole and then C was,
life in prison with the possibility of parocle. Your answer
was possaibly and then in each area where you could explain you
sald, only specific hiatory directly related to the crime
should be congidered, okay.

Now, I think a fair reading of that is that you will only
consider when it comes to those three possibie punishments
erimes -- I mean, the facts that relate to the crima. 1Is that
a correct interpretation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: I don’‘t think I fully
understood the queation at the time and with what I’ve heard
this morning and asking previous people, I understand what it
ig you're asking and any information that was presented would
have --

MR. LaPORTA: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: -- would have be

waighed.
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MR. LaPORTA: You understand that if there’s a
penalty phase, the State will present aggravating
circumstances and other evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yea,

MR. LaPORTA: You understand that. And the defense
will present mitigating circumstances, you underatand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR CORDOVA: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: And you understand that you can only
conalder the death penalty if the State proves beyond a
reasonable doubt at least one of thelr aggravators?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CCRDOVA: Yes.

MR, LaPORTA: Okay. Now, you aleso understand that
you don’‘t have to impose the death penalty, even though the
State has done that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes.

MR, LaPORTA: Proved beyond a reascnable doubt, one
of the aggravatora. You can chose one of the other two
punishmenta?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. You can totally reject
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDCVA: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: You can consider all three equally?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR CORDOVA: Yes, I can.

MR. LaPORTA: You can consider or conceive of a
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situation or a set of circumetances where you had just
convicted a man of first degree murder of two homicides and
you could still consider life with or without the poseibility
of parcle?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CORDOVA: I could consider all of
them based on the evidence that would be presented.

MR. LaPORTA: Fine. Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. The defense first peremptory
challenge?

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, the defense thanke and
excuses Juror Number 303, Ms. Bell, I believe it is.

THE COURT: All right. FPlease raport back to room
1013. Wwhat’'s is this now -- what's your name?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Holly Bell,

THE COURT: All right. Clerk will now call another
prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Bradlay Parker, number 328.

THE COURT: Please take that same seat up there, Mr.
Parker, all right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yep.

THE COURT: Aagain, we‘re going to question you
regarding your qualifications to serve as juror, Mr. Parker,
as a juror. If there's two phases to this type of case, a
murder case, whera the State is going to ask for the death

penalty, at least. The first phase is the trial phase. 1If
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the jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder
then we have a penalty phase and it’s up the jury to pick the
punishment. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: And the possibility punishment for life
with the poesibility of parole, life without the poasibility
of parole, and the imposition of the death penalty. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yep.

THE COURT: Could you equally considar each of thoge
optiona?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes,

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: One year.

THE COURT: And where did you come from, six?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Rose Lake, Idaho.

THE COURT: And what did you do ae far as work was
concerned in Idaho?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PARKER: Logging.

THE COURT: Well, what do you do here now that
you're here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: 1I'm a mechanic for Toro.

THE COURT: For who?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PARKER: Toro, Simpson Norton,

THE COURT: Yeah. Are you married?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nope.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nope.

THE COURT: You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: HNope.

THE COURT: You acquainted with anybedy in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nope.

THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of a
crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yep.

THE COURT: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Me and a friend of mine
got jumped in Palm Springs by a bunch of people.

THE COURT: Oh. Did they cateh the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nopa.

THE COURT: You never had to appear in Court or
anything?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nope.

THE COURT: That’s not going to affect your
deliberation? Have you or anyone closely asscciated with you
ever been arrested for a crime?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes.

THE COURT: Who's that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: My brother stole a car
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here and there and drugs. He’'s always in jail.

THE COURT: Yeah,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: And my brother-in-law was
arrested for manslaughter and a good friend of mine was
arregted for manslaughter.

THE COURT: Are they -- what were -- what were the
results of those manslaughter casges?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Both of them were
innocent.

THE COURT: Okay. So they never -- they’'re not
gpending any time in prisen --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: No.

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you had some
friends and relatives involved, that’s not going to affect
your deliberation in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: No.

THE COURT: You don’'t hold that against the State of
Nevada for anything. do you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: No.

THE COURT: All right. You aver serve on a jury
before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Nope.

THE COURT: You understand that Mr. Thomas is here
by what we call an information, it‘s a charging document

charging him with serious cxrimes, you understand that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yeg.

THE COURT: But it‘s a mere accusation and not --
it’'s not evidence. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes.

THE COURT: And he’'s presumed to be innocent until
proven guilty. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes.

THE COURT: And it’s incumbent upon the Statae of
Nevada to prove Mr. Thomas guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.
You understand that?

PROEPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes.

THE COURT: 1Is there any reason you couldn’t be fair
and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: No.

THE COURT: Thank you, air. Questions, pass for
cause?

MR. ROGER: Yea. Mr. Parker, you say your brother
has been arrested on a prior occasion for stealing cars or
possession of stolen cars.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PARKER: Yeah, and he's a -- big
drug use, steals cars to buy drugs hers and there and all that
kind of stuff.

MR. ROGER: Where does he live?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: In north Idaho now. He's
in jail up there.
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MR. ROGER:

PROSPECTIVE
of jail.

MR. ROGER:

Are you close to that brother?

JUROR PARKER: Oh, yeah. When he‘s out

Okay. How do you feel about the way the

criminal justice system has dealt with your brother?

PROSPECTIVE

JUROR PARKER: Oh, pretty good, I guess.

They do what they have to do.

MR. ROGER:

Okay. You had two friends or relatives

who've heen arrested for manslaughter?

PROBPECTIVE

MR. ROGER:

PROSPECTIVE

MR. ROGER:
their arrest?

PROSPECTIVE

really don’t remember.

MR. ROGER:
character for them?
PROSFECTIVE
MR. ROGER:
PROSPECTIVE
MR. ROGER:
PROSPECTIVE
MR. ROGER:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR PARKER: Mm-hmm,

Well, were these pecple close to you?
JUROR PARKER: Yes.

How did you feel when you learned of

JUROR PARKER: Oh, boy, I don't know. I

Did you feel that it was out of

JUROR PARKER: Oh, yeah,

Okay. Both went to trial before a jury?
JUROR PARKER: Yes.

And both were acquitted?

JUROR PARKER: Yes.

Did you go to those trials?

JUROR PARKER: Yes,
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MR. ROGER: Did you feel that the jury made the
right decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Oh, yes.

MR. ROGER: What are your feelings about the death
penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Oh, I don’t know. I've
never really even thought about it that much.

MR. ROGER: Did either one of your friends face the
death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: No.

MR. ROGER: Well, this is a very important decision,
would you agree, determining whether or not someone should
live or die?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes,

MR. ROGER: Do you think that you have the qualities
which would allow you to make such a serious decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: I think so, I'm not sure.

MR. ROGER: What qualities do you think that you
have in order to make that decigion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: I dont't know.

MR. ROGER: 1If the decision were solely up to you,
would we have the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: You ballieve that you’re the type of

person who could vote for the death penalty?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yes,

MR. ROGER: When you filled out the questionnairas,
did you understand all of the guesticns or were some of them
tricky?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Well, some of them I
didn’t understand.

MR. ROGER: Okay. You indicated on your
questionnaire that you could not peracnally vote for the death
penalty. Has you mind changed from that point until today or
is that your true feelings?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: That‘s my true feeling.

MR. ROGER: Understanding that there’s no right or
wrong answer and that people’s own personal vpinions are
simply that, perscnal opinicns, and You're certainly entitled
to it, you are telling us that you could not personally vote
for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: If it was just me, no.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Challenge for cause.

THE COURT: I don’‘t understand, You just told me a
minute ago, and that’e why I started my questioning, that you
could equally consider that the jury -- it‘s up to the jury to
determine whether -- what penalty imposed, life with the
possibility of paroles, life without the possibility of parocle,
and the imposition of the death penalty. Didn't I ask you
that queation?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: You did.

THE COURT: And you said, yeah, you could equally
consider it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yeah, through the jury --

THE COURT: So not what are you saying now?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR PARKER: -- not just myself.

THE COURT: Huh?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Not myself. I couldn’t.

THE COURT: Well, you’'re going to ~-- if you're part
of the Jury of twelve, you're going to be in that jury
deliberation roem and they're going to ask you how you vote,
and what are you going to -- I mean, would you equally
consider all of those three optiong?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: I kind of changed my
mind.

THE COURT: That’e the whole question. I mean if --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PARKER: I don’t think I could.

THE COURT: Why didn’'t you tell me that in the
beginning? It would have saved a few minutes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yeah, well, all right.

THE COURT: Huh? You can‘t -- you would never vote
for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Now that I think about
iz, no.

THE COURT: There’s a challenge for cause.
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MS. McMAHON: Your Honor, if I may just briefly.

Did I understand you to say earlier that you believe
that the death penalty was a valid form of punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: Yeah.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. But the problem, if I
underatand correctly, is you believe it’s wviable, it’'s an
alternative but if you sat on a jury, thera are no
circumstances when you wouldn't coneider the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PARKER: I don’‘t -- I don‘t think
0.

M8. McMAHON: Thank you. I have no further
questions.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to room 1013.
The clerk call out a prospective juror.

THE CLERX: BEBarbara Warehime, number 329,

THE COURT: Please take that same seat up theres, Ms.
Warehime. I'm going to ask -- start right away, Ms. Warehime,
you’ve had -- you’ve heard the questions that I have to ask,
is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Mm-hmm, yes, I have.

THE COURT: If you were picked as a juror and you
found the defendant guilty of first degree murder, then the
penalty phase kicks in. Do you undexrstand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIMB: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And you have three options under the
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State of Nevada.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes.

THE COURT: Life with the possibility of parole,
life without the possibility of parole, and the imposition of
the death penalty.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider all of those
options and render a verdict that’s fair in your mind?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes, I could.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR WAREHIME: Seventeen years,

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: I'm a pharmacy
technician at -- where I work with Sav-on.

THE COURT: And are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No, I'm not.

THE COURT: Children?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROBPECTIVE JURCR WAREHIME: Not in law enforcement,
no,

THE COURT: Have you aver been a victim of a crime?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Recently, yes.

THE COURT: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: About four months ago
there was a drive-by shooting at my house,

THE COURT: Were thay after you or somebody else or
it was an accident or something?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WAREHIME: I think it wag Just a
mistake in identity. There was eix shots fired, but I think
that they just mistook our house for scmeone else’s.

THE COURT: Nobody was hurt, I hope?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No, no one was hurt.

THE COURT: Did they ever catch the individuals?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WAREHIME: No, they didn’t.

THE COURT: All right, given that fact, that’s not
going to affect your deliberation in this cage, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No, not at all.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No.

THE COURT: Did you ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: No, I haven’t.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: There’'s no reason I

couldn’t.
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THE COURT: Thank you very much. Question, pass for
cause?

MR. ROGER: Just one question, Your Honor.

Judge Bonaventure apked you about considering
equally all three options of punishment; death penalty, life
imprisonment with and life imprisonment without the
possibility of parole. Now, if you were sitting on a jury and
you have to make that decision, could you, envision a situation
where you yourself could vote for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes, I could --

MR. ROGER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: -- with the pending
circumstances.

MR. ROGER: Okay. So if the State presented
evidence that you felt warranted the imposition of the death
penalty, you could sentence this defendant, who be here in
this courtroom, to death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: If the circumstances
and the background, with everything else, I could.

MR. ROGER: Thank you, Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Thank you, Judge.

Ma‘am, you understand that during the penalty phase,
is there cne such phase, that the State will present evidence

of aggravation, aggravators and that they have to prove cne
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aggravator beyond a reasonable doubt in order for you to be
able to chose the possibility of the death penalty. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes, I do.

MR. LaPORTA: You understand also that you’re under
-- you don’t have to impose the death penalty despite the fact
you’ve found beyond a reasonable doubt there's at least one
aggravator?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yesa, I do.

MR. LaPORTA: That there are two other possible
punishments and you can consider all three equally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WAREHIME: Yes, I could.

MR. LaPORTA: And you can concelve of a situation
where you’ve just convicted a persocn of first degree murder,
times two, two individuals, and you would still conceive of a
set of circumstances where you could choose one of the lives?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WAREHIME: Yes, I could.

MR, LaPORTA: Neo further questions, Your Honor.
Pass for causs,

THE COURT: The State’s next peremptory challenge.

MR. ROGER: Judge, we’ll thank and excuse Jury
Number 329, Barbara Warehime.

THE COURT: Please report back to room 1013, The
clerk will call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Charles Nelson, number 330.
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THE CQURT: Take that same seat up there, Mr.
Nelscn. How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Seven years.

THE COURT: All right. Well, again, Mr. Nelson,
this is the type of case that might, and the Government saya
might be involved in two phases, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: 1If you're picked as a jury, first you‘ll
hear evidence to determine whether or not Mr. Thomas is guilty
beyond a reascnable doubt. If the jury finds him gquilty
bayond a reasonable doubt of firat degree murder, then there‘’s
a penalty phase. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And then the State of Nevada sayse that
the jury determines punishment. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: &And theres’s three options, life with the
posaibility of parole, life without the possibility of parole,
and imposition of the death penalty. De you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And could you equally consider each of
those optians?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: I would, but I‘d
preference for the murder and life sentence. The parole, I

would have to kind of --
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THE COURT: 1I just want to understand.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: I would have to give a
lot of consideration on the parole end of it, due to the type
of case this represents, if you know what I mean,

THE COURT: I really don’t, but all I'm -- all I
want to know, you have a mind set that you could equally
consider all of the options --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, yes, I could.

THE COURT: -- and then make your decision basad
upon the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: I could, yeah.

THE COURT: All right. How long have you been in
Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NELSON: Seven years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: I work at the Mirage.

THE COURT: What do you do at the Mirage?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: I‘m a clerk.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: No, I‘'m not,

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yas,.

THE COURT: Any working?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yeah, one in the -- who

works for the Stratosphere and another one just graduated from
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UNLV, and she’s part-time at Sav-On.
THE COURT: All right.. Have you been in the

military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes, I have.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: You or anyone closely assoclated with
you ever been arreated for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: You ever serve cn a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: No, seir.

THE COURT: All right. Queations?

MR. ROGER: Yees. When you said that you’d have to
give some consideration to life with the possibility of
parcle, what did you mean?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Well, I -- due to the
severity of the crime and that, if it was a preference it
would be -- if it come to that, the death penalty, you know,
no thought of parcle. I mean -- but I would consider the
element of the third option.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Sp as you sit here, right down,

recognizing that you know nething about this case, you’re open
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to all three forms of punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: In that sense, I am, yes,
eir,

MR. ROGER: And you're willing to base your decision
upon the evidence and nothing else?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yas, sir.

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Pass for cause.

THE COURT: GQuestions, pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, briefly, Your Honor. Thank you.

Good afternoon, Mr. Nelson. I wanted to ask you a
few questions about the questicnnalre and I realize when the
questionnaire was filled out you didn’t have the information
you now have.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Right.

MS. McMAHON: The quesationnaire asks in two
different places whether a defendant in a criminal case should
be required to prove his or her innocence. In both of those
you angwered in the affirmative. Do you underatand that in
fact, the burden is entirely on the State to prove any
defendant guilty, that no defendant has the burden of proving
innecence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes.

MS, McMAHON: And do you agree with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Yes.

MS. McMAHON: You heard me ask other potential
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jurors before yourself about the statement in the
questionnaire that should, in fact, Marlo be convicted of
firet degree murder, in determining the appropriate penalty,
that you’re required to consider certain factors; health,
childhood experiences, et cetara. Now, in filling out the

questionnaire, you remarked that you would prebably or

possibly consider it. Do you understand that, in fact, if you

eit on the jury and there is a conviction, that you need to
consider that informatiom in arriving to your decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Right.

MS. McMAHON: Now, I have some concerns about
consideration of possible penalties. Should Marlo be
convicted and you are on the jury, the question is not could
you equally consider the three alternative forms of
punishment, but would you? Would you falrly consider life
without the poseibility of parole and life with the
possibility of parole and the death penalty? Or would you,
bacause of your beliefs, be more inclined to give unequal
consideration because of your beliefs?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSOM: I'd give equal.

M3. McMAHON: You would. And you would be capable
of doing that? Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nelson. I have no
further quegtions.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NELSON: Okay.

M8. McMAHON: 1I'd pass for cause, Judge.
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THE COURT: The defense next peremptory challenge?

MS. McMAHON: May I have the Court’s indulgence,
Judge?

Your Honor, the defense would thank and excuse Juror
Numbexr 305, Mr, Wood.

THE COURT: All right, eir, please return to room
1013. The clerk call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Raymond Thayer, number 331.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas,
sir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Sixteen years.

THE COURT: All right. Again, we're here to
datermine voir dire in the jury to get a fair and impartial
jury, Mr. Thayer. And you have -- will have known by now that
this type of case could go into two phases. One is the trial
phase, and if the jury finds Mr. Thomas guilty of firet degree
murder then under the laws of the State of Nevada they
determine the punishment. The three options are life with the
possibility of parole, life without the possibility of parole,
and the death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider all of those
cptiona?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: T deliver bottled water.

THE COURT: All right. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: No.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE SUROR THAYER: Yes, three.

THE COURT: Any cld enough to work or not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR THAYER: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybedy in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yes, my brother-in-law’'s
a police office in Pecria, Arizona, and my step-father's a
retired police office in Lake Havasu City, Arizona.

THE COURT: All right. Again, I £follow that with a
guestion, you're not to give greater weight or lesser weight
to a police officer’s testimony simply because they’re a
police officer, Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yas, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR THAYER: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely asgociated
with you ever heen arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Who was that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Me.

THE COURT: What were you arrested for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: 1985 for battery,
substantial bodily harm. I came in front of you. In 94 --

THE COURT: A long time ago.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Yeah.

THE COURT: That was in Justice Court when I was a
Justice of the Peace?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: I don't know.

THE COURT: All right. What were the results of
that case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: It was dismissed as long
as I left the individual alone.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR THAYER: Which I did, and it was
dismiesed.

THE COURT: Anything else?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: I got & DUI in '94 and I
got a felony theft in ‘395, but that’s been reduced to a
misdemeanor, so I'm paying restitution, and I also have a
public defender as my lawyer.

THE COURT: Who's that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR THAYER: Doug Gardner.

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you've had

that colorful career, let me just -- is that going to make
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your deliberation in this case? Is that going to affect your
deliberation in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR THAYER: No, sir.

THE COURT: That fact that I was your Judge, is that
going to affect your deliberation? You don’t like me or
whatever it is, or not?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR THAYER: No. That has --

MR. ROGER: Judge, 1'm sorry. We have a
stipulation.

THE COURT: Oh, all right.

MR. LaPORTA: We’ll stipulate on this, Your Honor.
Considering the fact that he’s appearad before you, before
Your Honor, to appear -- to aveid any appearance of
impropriety wa’ll -- and the other matters, we'll stipulate
tg --

MR. ROGER: His excusal.

MR. LaPORTA: -- his excusal, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You’'d be good at like a four or five
waek civil trial or something. Report back to room 1013, sir.
Thank you.

Clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Rosalinda Ortiz, number 332,

THE COURT: Hello, Ma. Ortiz, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: Yes.

THE COURT: Ms. Ortiz, again, this type of case
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might go into two phases. The first phase will be the trial
phase, and if the jury finds the defendant guilty of first
degree murder, then the penalty phase kicks in. You
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: See, in Nevada the jury determines
punishment. You understand that, in a first degree murder
cage?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: Yes.

THE COURT: And you have three optione: Life with
the possibility of parole, life without the possibility of
parole, and the imposition of the death penalty. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: Yes.

THE COURT: And would you equally consider all of
thosa options equally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: WNo, I can’t.

THE COURT: Why not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: I personally don't believe

in the death penalty because of religious belief.

THE COURT: What religion is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ORTIZ: I'm Catholic, and aince I
was a child, you don’t take the life of a person, no matter
what, 8o I’l]l be kind of biased to where, you know, if I'm

chosen as a juror, I’ll be kind of biased to make that
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decision, if I'm -- if I'm --

MR. ROGER: Challenge for cause.

THE COURT: Was that --

MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to room 1013.

The ¢lerk will call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: William Layton, number 334.

THE COURT: Mr. Layton, take that same seat, Mr,
Layton. Again, this case might be involved in two phases.
One would be the trial phase and if the jury found the
defendant guilty of first degree murder then it would -- the
penalty phase would kick in. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON : Yes,

THE COURT: Then you -- the jury would have the
option of life with the posesibility of parole, life without
the possibility of parole, and the impogition of the death
penalty. Do you understand that?

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Yas.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all of those
optiona?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LAYTON: Yea.

THE CCURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Twenty-three years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Warehouseman for Nevada
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Beverage Company.

Corp.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
‘THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

Are you married?

JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

What does your wife do, if she worka?
JUROR LAYTON: She’s in retail sales.
Do you have any children?

JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

Too young to work or --

JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

Have you ever been in the military?
JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

What branch?

JUROR LAYTON: United States Marine

How long?
JUROR LAYTCON: Three years.
Did yocu have anything to do with

military police or court martialing, did you?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROBPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR LAYTON: No.

You ever been a victim of a crime?
JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

What?

JUROR LAYTON: A car vandalism.
pid they catch the individual?
JUROR LAYTON: No.
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THE COURT: That's not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: HNo.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone clasely assoclated
ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

THE COURT: Who was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: My mother,.

THE COURT: What was she arrested for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Felony embezzlement?

THE COURT: How long ago was it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: About ten years ago, I
think,

THE COURT: It was probably in front of me, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: It might have been, I
don’t know.

THE COURT: No, I don‘t know. What were the results
of that case?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LAYTON: It was reduced to a
mipdemeanor.

THE COURT: O©Oh. The fact that your mother had that
very unpleasant experience, and I don‘t want to make fun of
ie, I just -- a little humor can’'t hurt once in a while, when
we get tired. That's not going to affect your deliberation in
this case, is it?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: No.

THE COURT: You don't hold that against the State of
Nevada because they had a -- somebody was prosecuting your
mother -- your mother was prosecuted, do you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: No.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever served on a
jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: No.

THE COURT: I8 there any reason then you couldn’t be
a fair and impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: No.

THE COURT: Thank you very much, sir. Questions,
pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Pasg for cause.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Paes for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: State’s third peremptory challenge.

MR. ROGER: We'll waive our third peremptory
challenge, Judge.

THE COURT: You wailve it? Thank you. The defense
third peremptory challenge?

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, the defense thanks and
excuses -- the defense thanks and excuses juror with badge
number 315, Ms. Desiderio.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Please report
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back to room 1013.

Clerk call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Maryann Rees, number 337.

THE COURT: Maryann Rees. Take that same seat up
thers, Mo. Rees, all right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: Mm-hmm,

THE COURT: 1Is that yea?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. We don't want any wh-huh
now. We’ve been getting away from that.

Ma. Reea, this case as I -- as we all indicated, we
all know by now, might be involved in two phases. First a
trial phase, and if the jury finds the defendant not gquilty or
lesser included, so be it, that’m the end of the came. If the
jury finds the defendant of -- guilty of first degres murder,
we go into the second phase. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: Yes.

THE COURT: And at the second phase, which I eall
the penalty phage, the jury determines the punishment. Either
life with the poesibility of parole, life without the
possibility of parole, or the impeosition of the death penalty.
Do you undergtand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: Yas.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all those
options?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: I would have a problem with
life with the possibility of parole, based on the severity of
the crime. I would feel that if he were to be paroled in the
future and go out and kill someone else I would feel very
responaible for that decision,

THE COURT: Well, certainly any decision a jury
makes is a very -- it -- take it -- can’t take it iightly,
it's -- you have to take your responsibility, but all I'm
asking would you equally consider those and then make the
determination based upon the facts as you see it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: I don’t know if I could
equally consider that possibility.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Ma’am, you understand -- you know --
unless you've read about it in the newspaper you know very
little about the case, the facts and circumstances and
probably nothing about the defendant’s criminal background, is
that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: That's correct.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. What we’'ra leoking for today
are twelve fair and impartial jurors, people who will base
their verdict sclely upon what comes into this courtroom by
evidence. Okay? And what wa're asking you to do ig keep an
open mind and consider all three options, if it gets to that

stage, before making a decision. Could you consider all three
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opticne and then make an informed decision based upon what you
feel ia correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR REES: I don‘t think I could do
life with the possibility of parcle.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. Thank you.

MR. LaPORTA: Yeah. Challenge for cause, Your
Honor,

THE COURT: All right. Please report back to Room
1013.

The clerk, call another prospective juror,

THE CLERK: Vincent Benoit, number 338.

THE COURT: Vincent Benoit. Take that same seat up
there, Mr. Benoit. All right. How long you been in Las
Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: About thirty years.

THE COURT: All right. And again, this type of a
case might go into two phases, the trial phase, if you find --
if the jury finds the dafendant quilty of firet degree murder
and then we go into the penalty phase and you have three
opticns, the jury, life with the posaibility of parole, life
without the pogsibility of parole and imposition of death
penalty. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENQIT: I do.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all those

options and make a determination based upon the evidence as
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you see it and underatand it?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR BENOIT: Yes, I would,
And what do you do for a living?

JUROR BENOIT: I work as a maintenance

engineer for a local cellular communications company.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
FROSPECTIVE

for six years.

1991.

police or

Are you married?

JUROR BENOIT: No.

Children?

JUROR BENOIT: No.

Have you ever been in the military?

JUROR BENOIT: Yes, I was in the Army

THE COURT: What branch?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: U.S. Army.

THE COURT: How long? Six years?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BENOIT: Six yearxs.

THE COURT: What years were they?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: That was 198S through
THE COURT: All right. And then what was your rank?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: I was am E-5, & Sergeant.
THE COURT: You had nothing to do with the military
court martial, did you?

PROSFECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR BENOIT: No.

Are you acquainted with anybody in law
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1| enforcement?

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes, as a wmatter of fact.

3 THE COURT: Who's that?

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: In my job we do have

5| occasion to respond to court orders to provide wire tap

6| services for Metro and/or the FBI.

7 THE COURT: All right. So you -- in your job
! 8| related --
! 92 PROSPECTIVE JURQR BENOIT: Right.

10 THE COURT: =~- you consult with people like that.

11| The fact that you have a job that you come in contact with law
12| enforcement pecple, that’s not going to affect your

13| deliberation in this case?

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No, it will not.

15 THE COURT: And you’'re not going to give greater

16 | weight or lesser weight to a police officer siwmply becauae

17| they’'re a police officer, are you?

1| PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOI?T: No, I will not.
r 19 THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?
20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes, I have,
21 THE COURT: What wae that?
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: I was ameaulted and also

23| have had a couple of burglaries over the years.
24 THE COURT: About the assault, did somebody just hit

25| you ox?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Well, it was somebody
that was having an affair with my wife at the time and it got
ugly.

THE COURT: All right. Were you -- did you have to
appear in court on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes, and he failed to
appear and of course a bench warrant was issued and he
disappeared.

THE COURT: All right. And those two burglaries,
were they cars, houses?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: It was one at my house
that I now live in and another one in an apartment that I used
to live in before that.

THE COURT: Did they ever catch the individuals?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No.

. THE COURT: The fact that you’'ve had those three
unpleasant experiences, that’'se not going to affect your
deliberation in this case, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BENOIT: No, it will not.

THE COURT: You don‘t hold that against the State of
Nevada for any reason?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No.

THE COURT: All right. Ever -- you or anyone
closely associated with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes.
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THE COURT: Who'’a that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: My wife, when I was
married to her, was arrested back in Maryland for hindering
and cbstructing a police officer. She waa drunk.

THE COURT: And what were the results of that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: It was dismizged.

THE COURT: All right. That‘s not going to affect
your deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR RENOIT: No.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury befora?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be fair and
impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No reason.

THE COURT: Thank you very wmuch.

Questions? Pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Yes, Judge.

Is it Mr. Benoit?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Benoit, yes.

MR. ROGER: Mr. Benoit, on these occasions when you
have been a victim was that here in Clark County?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No -- wall, the last
occasion was -- actually the last two. There was a burglary
at my apartment while I lived here and then at my house last

year.
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MR. ROGER: Both burglaries?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BENOIT: Yeah, those were both
burglaries.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Did they ever catch the
individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No. There was, you know,
there were fingerprints and so on, but nobedy was ever caught.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Did the Metropolitan Police
Department investigate those crimes?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes.

MR. RCGER: Recognizing that it's often difficult to
solve these burglaries if you don’t have a suspect, were you
satisfied or dissatisfied with the way they handled the
investigation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: I would have to say that
I was satisfied with the thoroughness of the investigation
that was done, yes,

MR. ROGER: Thank you. Do you believe you can be
fair and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE GUROR BENOIT: Yes, I do,

MR. ROGER: 1f the circumatances were appropriate,
could you personally vote for the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Yes, I could.

MR. ROGER: Thank you.

pass for cause.
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THE COURT: Questions? Pass For cause?
MS. McMAHON: Please, Your Honor. Thank you.
Good afternoon, Mr. Benoit.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: Good afternocon.

MS., McMAHON: On the quegtionnaire, question number

38 apked, "What types of opinions do you have that could
affect your judgment in a criminal law trial?® And your

response was, "I support the death penalty.' Becausa you

support and believe in the death penalty do yYou -+ do you feel
that that would have any impact in your fairly congidering all

alternatives of punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BENOIT: No, it would not impact
my fairly congidering all the different alcternatives,

MS. McMAHON: Thank you.

(Pause in the proceedings)

MS. McMANON: That's all. Thank you.

THE COURT: Pass for cauge?

MS. McMAHON: Pags for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Don’t converse among yourselves or
anyone else on any subject connected with the trial, read,
watch or listen to any report or commentary on the trial, or
form or express any opinion on the trial until the Court has
finally submicted it to you.

If the attorneys -- you might see the attorneys
outside in the hallway, ladies and gentlemen, don't -- they
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don't want to engage you in any chit-chat, because they don’'t
want to be accused of currying favor with the jury, so please
don't take that as an affront that they don‘t want to you;
they’'re all professicnal lawyers and they don’t want to be
accused of currying favor.

With that understanding we’ll take a ten minute

recess.
(The Court recemsed until 2:15 p.m.}
(Prospective Jurors Present)
THE COURT: --- its fourth peremptory challenge if
it sees fit.

MR. ROGER: We'’ll thank and excuse Juror Number 310,
Cindy Miller.

THE COURT: All right. Pleaee report back to Room
1013.

The clerk, call another prospactiva juror.

THE CLERK: Michael Boeckle.

THE COURT: Michael.

THE CLERK: Number 338.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Boeckle, again these
questions related to your qualifications. I know they’res
tedious and I don‘t like hearing them, but they’re very, very
important both to the State of Nevada and to the defense, of
course.

This trial might be like a two phase aspect, that
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the first phase would be the trial and -- the trial phase and
if the jury finds the defendant guilty of firat degree murder,
then the penalty case kicke in. Of course, if the Jury finds
the defendant not guilty or guilty of a lesser included we
don’t havae any penalty phase, But just in case we do we have
to ask these questions. So the State of Nevada -- laws of the
State of Nevada provide that the jury sets the punishment and
the possible punishments that these -- the law indicates is
life with the possibility of parole, life without the
possibility of parole or the imposition of the death penalty.
Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Would you be able to equally consider
each of those punishments?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yes, sir, I would.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: On and off, eight years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a liwving?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: I'm a resource analyst.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your wife do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: 8he works at Bally’s,
she’s a change person.

THE COURT: Children?
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PROSPECTIVE

JUROR BOECKLE: Two. One married and in

Michigan, the other one a student.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
branch?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
military police?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

You ever been in the military?
JUROR BOECKLE: Twenty-four years.

Twenty-four. What’'d you do? What

JUROR BOECKLE: Air Force.

And when did you get out?
JUROR BOECKLE: S8ix months ago.
What was your rank?

JUROR BOECKLE: E-7.

Anything to do with court martialing or

JUROR BOECKLE: No.

Okay. What did you do there mostly?
JUROR BOECKLE: Financial analyst.
You ever been a victim of a ¢xime?
JURQCR BOECKLE: Yes.

What was that?

JUROR BOECKLE: Home break in.

Did they catch the individual?
JUROR BOECKLE: No.

Never had to appear in court?
JUROR BOECKLE: No.

That's -- it’s not going to affect your
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deliberation in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLB: No.

THE COURT: You or anyone closely aggociated with
you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BCECKLE: No,

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: No.

THE COURT: You understand that Mr. Thomas eits here
with the presumption of innccence, that he’s presumed to be
innocent until the proven -- until the -- it‘s -- the State
proves him guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. You understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yes, I do.

THE CCURT: And he‘s here by what we call an
information, if you're picked ag a juror that information will
be read to you, but it’s a mere charging document and it‘s not
evidence. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yasa.

THE COURT: And at the conclusion of this case I'm
going to instruct you as what the law is on this particular
case. Would you promise me you’ll follow my instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: I will.

THE COURT: Is there any reason you couldn’t be a
fair and impartial juror in this case then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: No.
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THE COURT: Thank you very much, sir.

Questions? Pasms for causae?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Pase for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Questicns? Pass for caupe?

MR, LaPORTA: No, Your Honor, I have a few questions
of -- Mr. Boeckle 1s it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Boeckle.

MR, LaPORTA: Boeckle. I see where your place of
birth was in England --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: That‘s correct.

MR. LaPORTA: -- ls that correct? How long have you
lived in America? I mean has it been --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Thirty years.

MR. LaPORTA: Thirty years, so, and you’re an
American citizen I am going to assume.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: I am.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. All right. Now, getting
inteo the attitudes towards death penalties, there was a
question in here you anawered, when it came to life without
the possibility of parole, one of your -- I asked you what
your general theoughta about it wera. No benefit, too costly.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Yea.

MR. LaPORTA: 8till your feelings right now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: 1I'd say that, yes.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. So, you couldn’t consider
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all three.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: I could, sir, based on
the evidence. This was definitely an eye opening experience
hare listening to some of thinga. I‘m not a lawyer, so I
don't know what the law is --

MR. LaFORTA: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BOECKLE: -- but I will give -- I
will be -- I'll judge on the guidance that’s given to me and
the evidence presented.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. So, in other wordas, you
can set your personal feelings aside in this case as to --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: I think I can be
impartial.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. Do you think or do you
know? It's very important to both aides.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BORCKLE: I will be -- I can he
impartial.

MR. LaPCRTA: Ckay. You ¢an ba.

I have no further questions, Your Honor, pass for
cause.

THE COURT: Pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Pamss for cause.

THE COURT: The defenae fourth peremptory challenge.

MS. McMAHON: Court’s indulgence, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: The juror thanks -- defense thanks and
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excuses Juror Numbexr 322, Mr. Cortez.

THE COURT: All right. Sir, report back to Room
1013.

The clerk, another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Marilyn Worob.

THE COURT: Is Marilyn here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: Yee.

THE COURT: All right. Take that same seat,
Marilyn. How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: Eleven months.

THE COURT: All right. And now, again, we’re here
to pick a jury, as you well know after being here all morning
and a couple hours in the afterncon and we pick a jury by
asking a lot of questions, and part of the questioning is this
particular case could go inte two phases, you understand that.
The trial phase, if the jury finds the defendant not guilty or
guilty of a lesser included, or scmething, then we don‘'t go
into the penalty phase, but only if the jury finds the
defendant guilty of first degree murder do we go intoc the
penalty phaae. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: Yes.

THE COURT: In Nevada our laws say that the jury hae
to impose punishment. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: Yes.
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THE COURT: And the possible punishments are, life
with the possibility of parole, life without the possibility
of parole and the imposition of the death penalty. You
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: I do.

THE COURT: Could you -- would you -- would you
equally consider all those options in reaching a verdice?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: No, I wouldn't.

THE COURT: Why not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: I don't beliave in the
death penalty.

THE COURT: Is this a religious thing, are you
Cathelic like the other one, is that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: I am Catholic, I just
don’'t think I have the right to say someone should die.

THE COURT: Where did you learn this from?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOROB: It’s just kind of the way
I am. I just, you knew, I don’'t believe I have the power to
pay someone should die.

MR. ROGER: Challenge for cause.

MR. LaPORTA: No objection.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to Reom 1013,

The clerk, call ancther prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Clara Hoover, Number 343.

THE COURT: Clara Hoover. Take that same seat, Ms.
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Hoover.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: Thank you.

THE COURT: Again, Me. Hoover, this case could
involve two phases. The first phase would be the trial phase.
If the jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder,
then a penalty phase is kicked in and the jury is the one that
determines punishment here in Nevada and Nevada provides for
three possible punishmenta, life with the posasibility of
parole, life without the possibility of parole and the
imposition of the death penalty. You understand thac?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: Yes, I understand.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: No, I don’t consider life
with the poseibility of parole. I just don’'t agree with that.

THE COURT: Well, you might not agree, but the law
provides this, don’t you underatand? Aren’t we a nation of
lawa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: Yes.

THE COURT: And we have certain laws and it provides
that every case is different, every facts are different --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: VYes.

THE COURT: -- and the law provide -- they’'re not
saying -- telling you what to do --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOQVER: No.
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THE COURT:

these options.

PROSPECTIVE

-- they're just saying you can consider

JUROR HOOVER: I don’t think I can

congider that, really.

THE

COURT:

Is it a religlous thing?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: No, it's my belief.

THE

COURT:

Where did you get this belief?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: From listening te a lot

of --

THE

COURT:

Television?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HOOVER: MNot television, of real

things and -~
THE
M3.

cause.

THE
The
THE

THE COURT:

COURT:

Any motions here?

McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor, we’'d challenge for

LaPORTA: Yes, challenges for cause.

COURT :

clerk,

CLERK:

All right. Report back to Room 1013.
call another prospective juror.
Frankie Sheppard, number 344.
(Off record colloquy)

You’re Frankie Sheppard, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SHEPPARD: Yes,

THE COURT:

This case could go possibly into two

phasea, Ms. Sheppard. One would be the trial phase and if the

jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder then
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the penalty phase kicks in and the jury has a right to have
options of life with the possibility of parole, life without
the possibility of parole and imposition of tha death penalty.
Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SHEPPARRD: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you egually consider any of those
options -- each of those options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SHEPPARD: I have a little hard
time with the death penalty.

THE COURT: Why is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR SHEPPARD: I just don‘t want to
pee -- be responsible of anyone’'s death.

THE COURT: Okay. Any questions?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Challenge for cause.

MR. LaPORTA: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to Room 1013.

The clerk, call ancther prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Sandra Lane, Number 345.

THE COURT: Take that same geat, Ms. Lane, Again,
those three options, life with the posaibility of parcle, life
without the possibility of parole, imposition of death
penalty, would you equally consider those?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yas, sir, I would.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Forty-seven years.
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THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I work for Clark County
Public Works, I run the map room.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: Does your husband work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: My husband ie a mechanic
for Cables Underground and I have two children, one in the
military, presently at Fort Bragg and the other one here is a
carpenter.

THE COURT: Okay. You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I have not, no.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LANE: My cousin was married to
the Chief of Police of North Las Vagas, he retired about
twelve years ago.

THE COURT: That’a not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: You're not going to give greater weight
or lesser weight to a police officer simply because thay’'re a
police officer, are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: You ever been the victim of a orime?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Many years ago I had
somecne in my house that tried to attack me.

THE COURT: Did they catch the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: And that’s not going to affect your
deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir, that was over
twenty years ago.

THE COURT: Yeah. And you or anyone closely
associated with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I was arrested about twenty
Years agoe for slapping a lady who was pulling my hair.

THE COURT: And they arrested you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: What were the results of that, ma‘am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: It was dismilesed where I
went to school --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: ~- to learn to control my
temper,

THE COURT: All right. And that'e not going to
affect your deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir, that’s also been
twenty years ago.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury before?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir, three times.

THE COURT: All right. The first time, criminal or

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LANE: The first time was a --

THE COURT: dJust answer my question, criminal or

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: It was fedexal.

THE COURT: Criminal or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Criminal.

THE COURT: What was the charge?

PROSPECTIVE SUROR LANE: Crossing the picket line --

12| or croasing the line at thea Test Site.

13
14
15
16
17
h3:]
19

THE COURT: All right. Did you serve as a juror?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir.

THR COURT: Did you deliberate the case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: Weres you plcked as foreperson?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict, did

20| the jury reach a verdice?

21
a2
23
24
25

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir, we did.

THE COURT: The second time, criminal or civil?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: It was a civil caass,

THE CQURT: All right. You were picked as a juror?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, Bir,
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THE COURT: You delikerated the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you picked as foreperson?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, eir.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,

did the jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir, they -- the

defendant settled ocut of court.

the case.

THE COURT: Okay. So you really didn’t deliberate

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Not that one, sir.
THE COURT: All right, BAnd the third charge,

criminal or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Criminal.
THE COURT: What was the charge?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: The gentleman was exposing

himmelf to little children.

THE COURT: All right. Were you picked as a jurox?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Were you picked as foreparson?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: Did you deliberate the case?
FROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,

did the jury reach a verdict?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir, we did.

THE COURT: All right. Any reason you couldn‘t be a
fair and impartial juror in this case, ma’am.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LANE: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you so much.

Questions? Pass for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Just briefly, Your Honor.

Good afternoon, ma’am.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Gcod afternoon.

MR. SCHWARTZ: When you filled out the gquestionnaire
and you were asked on question 85, did you say that you were
generally, and that glves you three choices, in favor of the
death penalty, generally opposed to it or never thought about
it. You circled, never thought about it and then you wrote in
next to that, I have thought about it, but I haven’t made up
my mind.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LANE: I‘'ve never really been, you
know, never been put in the position where I had to make that
kind of decision, but I do feel that I am able to make that
decision.

MR. SCHWARTZ: So if the S8tate brought forth
sufficient evidence wherain you returned a verdiect of first
degree murder, and then you were to deliberate at the penalty
phase and you felt after hearing all the evidence at the
penalty phase, both on behalf of the State and the defense,
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you felt the only appropriate punishment for the deaths of
thess two young men was one of death, you could sentence this
defendant to death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: Yes, sir.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you. Pass for cause, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Questione? Pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: No, Your Honor, I have a few questions
hera.

Ma‘am, on guestion number 98 you -- the guestion
was, "Do you feel that life in prison without the possibility
of parole is a severe punishment.* You answered, *No.® And
in the explanation area you went on to say, "Depending on
crime committed they should pay for taking the other’s life."
Now, putting those twe together, do you consider life without
the poseibility of parocle and may I say that’s exactly what it
means, abeolutely no parole, ever.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR LANE: I -- I understand that.

MR. LaPORTA: Do you conasider that a harsh
punishmentc?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I coneider that a very
harsh punishment. I have to admit that while we were filling
out the questionnaires we were told we could go home when they
ware done and I was in a hurry.

MR. LaPORTA: Okay. You don’t consider, if you
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heard all the evidence, aggravating or mitigating, during the
penalty phase, do you think that by giving ‘em 1life without
the possibility of parole somehow, you know, you're giving a
break of some sort.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: No, sir.

MR. LaPORTA: I mean you are -- do you understand
that you are meting out a harsh form of punishment.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I understand that’s a very
harsh punishment, all of -~ all three of them are.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. And you can conaider all
three equally?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE: I believe so.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. Pass this -- all right.
No further questions, pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. The State’s next peremptory
challenge,

MR. ROGER: We’ll be waiving our next peremptory
challenge, Judge.

THE CQURT: Thank you.

The defense next peremptory challenge.

MR. LaPORTA: The defense thanks and excuses Badge
Number 339, Mr. Boeckle I believe that is.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BOECKLE: Boeckla.

MR. LaPORTA: Boeckla.

THE COURT: All right. Please report back to Room
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1013.

The clerk, call another proepective juror,

THE CLERK: Badge Number 346, Charles Jasper --
Gasper.

THE COURT: Is it Gasper?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: Casper.

THE COURT: Casper.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: C.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas, sir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: Two years.

THE COURT: Again, sir, you know, your
qualifications as a juror we ask these questions of everybody
and they're very serious gquestiona. And this could be a
poseible two phase trial. The first ie the trial phase, if
the jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder,
then the penalty phase kicks in and it’s incumbent upon the
jury to provide the punishment. You underatand that, the
punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: And the possibilitiea that the law
provides are, life with the poseibility of parole, life
without the possibllity of parole and the imposition of the
death penalty, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: Yes, eir.

THE COURT: Would you be able to aqually consider
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each of those options and make a --

FROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: No, sir. No, sir, I
would be against the death penalty.

THE COURT: Why is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: Because I just don’t feel

it’s right to take another person’s life,

THE COURT: 1Is that religion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CASPER: It's just the way I’'ve
been brought up.

MR. ROGER: Challenge for cause,

MR, LaPORTA: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to Room 1013.

The c¢lerk, another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge Number 347, Sylvia Weber.

THE COURT: Take that same eeat, Sylvia, there.
Again, this two phase aspect, Sylvia, if the jury finds the
defendant guilty of first degree murder then the options at
the penalty phase are life with the posaibility of parole,
life without the possibility of parole and the imposition of
the death penalty. Could you equally consider all of thege
optiona?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: No.

THE COURT: Wwhy ie that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: I don‘t believe that a

perscn that has taken a life should deserve parola.
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THE COURT: So every single case you’'d give somebody
death,

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: On first degree.

THE COURT: Nec matter what the circumstances are --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WEBER: Well, either that or --

THE COURT: -- no matter what the age, no matter
what the background or anything.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: That'’s right, they should
be responsible for their behavior.

THE COURT: You’'d put everybody to death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: Not everybody to death,
but either that or --

THE COURT: Well, that’s what you just said, you
wouldn't consider the other option.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WEBER: Well, either that --
eicher that or the life in -- life sentence.

THE COURT: Life sentence,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: Yes.

THE COURT: So that‘s the optiona, life with, life
without or death.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WEBER: Well, I said that I do not
agree that they should have parole, life with parole,

MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

MR. SCHWARTZ: No objection.

THE COURT: Report back to Room 1013,
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Another prospective juror.

THE CLERK:
THE COURT:

Badge Number 348, Gladys Howard.

Oh, that was -- we’ve excused her

because she had scme pulmonary problems.

THE CLERK:
THE COURT:

Badge Number 349, William Tiu.

¥William, take that same seat. Could you

consider all those three options, life with, life without and

the death.

Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

JUROR TIU: Yeah.

Okay. And how long you been in Las

JUROR TIU: Twelve.

Twelve years?

JURCR TIU: Uh-huh.

And what do you do for a living?
JUROR T1U: Enginesring.

What company, sir?

JUROR TIU: Hospital.

Okay. Are you married?

JUROR TIU: No, divorca,
Children?

JUROR TIU: Two girle.

What do they do for a living?
JUROR TIU: The older one is a secretary

and the younger one ls the part-time carrier in pharmacy.
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THE COURT: Okay. You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No.

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: My next door neighbor.

THE COURT: What’s his name? All you know is he's a
member of Metro?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No, he work in Goldfield.

THE COURY: He worked in Goldfield?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yeah.

THE COURT: As an officer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yeah.

THE COURT: All right. But you don’t -- you
don’t -~

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yeah, we talk a lot.

THE COURT: Talk a little. All right. ‘The fact
that your neighbor works in Goldfield, that’s neot going to
affect your deliberation in this case, 18 it?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: 1I don‘t think so,.

THE COURT: Again, you‘re not to give greater weight
or lesser weight to a police officer's testimony simply
becausa they’re a police officer, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR TIU: We never mention about any
trial.

THE COURT: Pardon? You never talked to your
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neighbor, right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No.

THE COURT: But you know you’‘re not to give greater
weight or lessmar weight to a police officer’s testimony,
simply because they‘re a police officer, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: Yeah.

THE COURT: All xight. Have you ever been a victim
of a crime?

PROBPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Victim, yes.

THE COURT: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: When I still own the
motel --

THE COURT: Pardon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: When I still have the motel
I been beat up,

THE COURT: Okay. Did they ever catch the
individual?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you have to go to court?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. The fact that you had that
unpleasant experience, that‘s not going to affect your
deliberation --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No.

THE COURT: -- in this cage, is it? Have you or
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anyone closely associated with you ever been arrested for a

crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Me, no.
THE COURT: Did you ever serve on a jury bafore?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No.
THE COURT: Any reason you couldn‘t be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: No, I don’t think so.

THE COURT: Thank you very much, sir.

Questions? Pass for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you.

Good afternoon, sir. When you were given these --
this questionnaire to £4ill out, I noticed that you didn‘'t
answer very many of the questions, is there a reason for that,
sir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Being lazy.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Being lazy. Okay. Do you know how
important it is to £ill out the questionnaires?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yeah.

MR. SCHWARTZ: So that both sides can know something
about -~

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Uh-huh.

MR. SCHWARTZ: -- the prospective jurors?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Yeah,

MR. SCHWARTZ: Now, with regard to the death
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penalty, what is your feeling toward the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: And I'm a Catholic, I don’t
believe in punishments like an eye for an eye.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. So you don’t beliave in the
death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIiU: People have to give some of
excuse [Bic) of their background. Maybe they grow up as a bad
neighborhcod or the parents are not teaching it right, Peopla
may dos [sic) --

MR. SCHWARTZ: Ckay. So if you were given a
queations, yes or no, do you believe in the death penalty, yes
or no? Could you ever vote for the death penalty, yes or no?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: If I have to vote, yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: You could -- you could come into this
courtrcom and sentence another individual to death?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: Not me. I can’‘t do that.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay.

Your Honor, I would challenge for cause.

THE COURT: Well, you just toid me, pir, when I --
in the beginning, that‘s why I do it in the beginning that you
could equally consider each of those cptions, life with, life
without and the imposition of the death penalty, you could
equally conaider and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: I ¢an consider, but --

THE COURT: -- do what you want to do when you hear
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the faects, could you do that, a yes or no?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: I could.

THE COURT: So =--

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: But for my -- for the
purpose of killing somebody.

THE COURT: For the what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TIU: I'm still consider death
penalty is not right.

THE COURT: Well, could you vote for the death
penalty under appropriate circumstances?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TIU: No, I don‘t think so,.

THE COURT: All right. Report back to Room 1013,

The clerk, call ancther prospective juror,

THE CLERK: Badge Number 350, Kevin Evans.

THE COURT: Mr. Evans, take that same geat, all
right. All right. Mr. Evana, if this case, if the jury finds
a defendant guilty of first degree murder, then this goes into
the penalty phase, you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider each of the
optiona, life with the possibility, life without the
possibility of parole --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeas.

THE COURT: -- and the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yes.
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THE COURT:

You could equally consider all of thosa

options, hear the evidence and make a determination, is that

correct?
PROSPECTIVE
‘THE COURT:
PROBPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
Disposal.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PRCSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
with you ever been --

like him eleeping.

JUROR EVANS: Yes.

How long you been in lLag Vegas?
JUROR EVANS: Twenty-two years.

And what do you do for a living?
JUROR EVANS: I work at Silver State

And what do you do there?

JUROR EVANS: Pick up trash,

Okay. Are you married?

JURCR EVANS: No,

Children?

JUROR EVANS: No.

You ever been in the military?

JUROR EVANS: No.

Are you acquainted with anybedy in law

JUROR EVANS: No.

You ever been a victim of a crime?
JUROR EVANS: No.

Have you or anyone closely asscciated

wake that guy up. I think -- I don’t
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Have you or anyone closely associated with you ever
been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: No, not as I can think of.
No.

THE COURT: What are you sleeping for? Get this guy
outside and give him a little attitude adjustment. This guy
right -- that gquy there.

Have you ever been -- or you any closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: No.

THE COURT: You aver serve on a jury bafore?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: No.

THE COURT: And how old are you? Twenty-two?

PROEPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Twenty-two.

THE COURT: Do you live alone or with your parents?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: With my parent.

THE COURT: What do your parents do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: My mother works at Nevada
Power.

THE COURT: And what does your father do?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR EVANS: I don't live with him.

THE COURT: Okay. You live with your mother and she
works at Nevada Power,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

THE COURT: You got brothersg and sloters?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. Is there any reason You couldn’t
be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANZ: No.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Questions? Pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Yes. Mr. --

MS. McMAHON: Excuse me, I have --

THE COURT: What?

M3. MeMAHON: I'm morry.

MR. ROGER: Mr. Evane, sometimes thers are things in
people’s backgrounds or their situation where they can’t give
ug their full attention during a trial --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Um-hmm.

MR. ROGER: -- and we need to know about that,
because sometimes it weighs heavily on a person‘s mind. I see
that 8ilver State Disposal has a policy of not paying their
employees when they're here.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: You understand that this trial could
take up to two weeks?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: Do you have financial responsibilities?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Not right now.
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MR. ROGER: The fact that they do not pay you for
coming down here, do you think that that might have some
affect on your ability to give us your full attention during
thia trial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: No.

MR, ROGER: Have you ever thought about -- or let me
agk you this, what was your first thought when you were called
upon to come down and sit as a juror?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: To learn something.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Do you want to be a juroxr?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR EVANS: BSure,

MR. ROGER: Why?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Just to see how the legal
Bystem worka.

MR. ROGER: You indicate in your cquestionnaire that
you've really never thought about the death penalty and
whether or not it’s an appropriate punishment. If the
decieion was solely up to you, would we have capital
punishment in this State?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: Why?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR EVANS: In my cpinion some things
people do aren’t right, regard -- that’s bottom line.

MR. ROGER: What types of things would you want to

hear, from either side, in datermining whether or not death is
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an appropriate punishment?

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, I’'1l object to that form
of question, that’s asking him to commit to certain facts
within this case,

MR. ROGER: 1I'm not asking him to commit to certain
facts, I'm agking him what considerations he would coneider
important.

THE COURT: That‘p a pretty tough question, Mr.
Roger, you know it’s -- unleas you want to rephrasa it I'm
going to sustain the cbjection.

MR. ROGER: Okay. Would you want to hear about a
person’e gocial background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MR. ROGER:; Would you want to hear about the bad
things that the person has done in the past?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: It would have some impact.

MR. ROGER: Okay. I asked another one of the jurors
about whether or not they believed that pesychlatrists or
psychologists have an important role in this type of a
setting, do you believe or would you want to hear from a
psychiatrist or a paychologist?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR EVANS: Not -- I mean it’s -- it
wouldn’t be up to me, but not really, it wouldn't -- I‘d
rather hear from the person than a peychologist.

MR. ROGER: You believe in the death penalty?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeas.

MR. ROGER: Could you vote for the death penalty
perscnally, if the circumstances were appropriate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MR. ROGER: There’s some hesitation on your part,
you understand that this is very important to both sides --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yes.

MR. ROGER: -- to know your true feelinga about tha
death penalty. Do you have some hesitation as to whether or
not you could vote for it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: No.

MR. ROGER: Thank you.

Pass for cause,

THE COURT: Questions? Pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Juat briefly, Your Honor.

Good afterncon. I have your dquestionnaire in fromt
of me, Mr. Evans, and I know it was very long, okay. One
portion of the gquestionnaire, it asks whether you believe a
defendant in a criminal trial should be required to prove his
or her innocence, and you had marked that "agreed". Do you
understand now, I assume, having been hers listening to the
Judge and hearing statements, that the defendant in fact has
no burden of proof?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: I didn’t hear you, say it

again.

1-227

v g s = BN e —— e r——

AA5425



[ I N I

-]

10
1l
12
13
14
15
16
17
is
i
29
21
22
23
24

25

a criminal case is not required to prove his or her innocence?

were to sit as a juror in this case and you found that at time
of deliberation that you were not in agreement with the other
jurors, would you maintain your position after listening to

them or in order to reach a verdict would you change your

position?

subatantial point I would not change.

challenge.

approach the bench?

gentlemen,

MS. McMAHON: Do you understand that a defendant in

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MB. McMAHON: The State has the burden --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.

MS. McMAHON: -- is that correct?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: Yeah.,

MS. McMAHON: One other gquestion, Mr. Evans. If you

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EVANS: If I felt I had a

MS. McMAHON: Okay. Thank you.
I have no further gquestions, we pass for cause.

THE COURT: All right. The State‘s next peremptory

MR. ROGER: The Court‘s indulgence. Judge, may we

THE COURT: Yeas.
{Off-record bench confarence)
THE COURT: We have a legal argument, ladiss and

just please wait ocutside, it’s only going to be a

I-228

AA5426



w o oN P

w O ©® N1 e

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
2L
23
23
24
a5

few minutes, I‘'m going to call you right back in and hurry

back in. Just -- Hank, come on, get everybody outside and

real quick, and the jury here go out last and then come back

in first. All right. Just wait until everybody else leaves.
{Prospective Juror are not Present)

THE COURT: This is outside the presence of the
jury.

Why did you want me to excuse the jury, Mr. Roger?

MR. ROGER: Judge, we’re going to exercise our next
peremptory challenge as to Mr. Evans, Juror Number 350.

THE COURT: Well, we noticed that -- we notice that
Mr. --

UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Do you want him in here?

MS. McMAHON: Yeah, that’s our investigator, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. That's fine.

MR. LaPORTA: That’s cur investigator, Your Honor.

THE COURT: We notice that Mr. Evans is an African
American and he's the only African American on the jury and
why are you moving to exclude him?

Do you have any objections, first of all, the
defense have any objections to the State exercising its sixth
peremptory challenge against Mr. Evans?

M3. McMAHON: Yes, Your Henor, we do. For the

racord, we believe that it violates the mandate of Batson
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versug Kentucky, as the Court is aware that young man is the
only African American on this jury panel. We would request of
the Court ascertain if in fact the State has racially neutral
reasons for raising the preemptory and that we be allowed to
respond the same as --

THE COURT: All right.

Mr. Roger.

MR. ROGER: Judge, Ms. McMahon perhaps misspoke
herself, this is not the only African American jury -- juror
on thea panel.

THE COURT: Well, it‘s on -- it’s on a twelve people
we have on a jury so far.

MR. ROGER: Right. There is no constituticnal
requirement that we have African Americans on a jury. what is
reguired is that a jury venire, the entire venire be comprised
of a falr cross section of the community. There have been
African Americans where they have stipulated to excusing them.
My -- the case of Doyle vergup State requires that the defense
make a prima facia showing that are -- exercilee that that
peremptory challenge is based upon race, it is not. They have
not met that challenge. And so, at a very minimum, Dovle says
that the Court can deny their motion and grant the peremptory
challenge. But even Lf we were to be required to provide the
Court with our reasoning, I can tell you that it has nothing

to do with race, but instead the personal make-up of this
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juror.

Judge, this is a capital murder case. There is no
question in our mind that regardless of what mitigating
circumstances come out, we’re going to be asking for the death
penalty. We are entitled to have a juror -- a jury that can
in fact vote for the death penalty. There are many
intangibles that occur in determining whether or not a perscn
can meet that burden. Simply because they answer the
questions in a right way does not necessarily mean, from
either side, that that person can in fact vote for the death
penalty.

Mr. Evansg ig a twenty-two year old young man who
lives at home and certainly has not had to face the very
asignificant decision that he’ll have to make in this case, and
that's whether or not a person lives or dies. His attitude in
the courtroom was one of being cavalier. And he chewed gum
during the entire time, his attitude towards my questicning
wae cavalier and in fact there was at least some hesitation on
his part when I asked him if he could actually vote for the
death penalty.

The United States Supreme Court case which wae
cited, Parquet versgus Elem, 115 Supreme Court, 1700, a 1995
cage, talked about the three step inquiry that a Court muset
make when determining whether or not a Batson challenge is

appropriate. In that particular case the prosecutors
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indicated that they were challenging a minority, because the
potential jurcr had long hair -- long, curly hair, and that he
alsoc had a moustache, he appeared unkept, he had a goatee, he
was -- I believe they also indicated that he was young and
that was the reason for challenging that particular juror.

And the United States Supreme Court held that that was a
racially neutral reason and that a prosecutor’'s reason should
be given a certain amount of deference.

Judge, when we selected these jurora -- these
juries, there ars a lot of intangibles that we take inta
consideration, but I suggest to the Court this question was an
easy one. He is the youngest juror that we have up on there,
I don‘t want a person for the first time to have to decide
whether or not someone should live or die. I was not the
propenent of this questionnaire, in fact, I oppomed it. I
don’t beljieve in them. However, the guestionnaire that was
supplied by the defense, even this witness -- or his juror
indicated that this was the f£irst time that he had ever
considered whether or not the death pesnalty was an appropriate
form of punishment. Becauss of all those reasons and not
because of the color of his skin, we are exercising that
peremptory challenge.

MS. McMAHON: If wa may respond, Your Henor? With
all due respect to Mr. Reger, it is still the position that

the challenge in fact is based on race, and I would reiterate
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again for the record that Mr. Evans is in fact the only Afro-
American in the jury box with the prospective panel that we
have now. I would remind the Court that many men and women,
as we have gone through the voir dire of the jury, have stated
that they have not personally thought about the death penalty
before. And that's been consistent in the questionnaires and
consistent in the responaes.

Mr. Evans, when questioned by the State and by
myself, stated that he in fact was in favor of the death
penalty, that he could vote to impose it. He is young, he’s
22, he ie certainly old enough to be on a jury, he’s old
enough to vote, he’s old enough to be in the armed services.
We have other young pecple. It is my best sense that there is
no racially neutral reason that applies to him that does not
apply to the other jurors, and I would request the Court to
deny the State’s motion to challenge on a peremptory basis.
Thank you.

THE CCURT: In typical caeses I can understand, you
know, it would be the first thing you locked to, well, you
know, it’s the first African-American on the jury and all of a
sudden Mr. Roger on the State is challenging him -- or, not
challenging, but is perempting him. But then when you listen
to the reasons why, he’'s a young man, he was -- I don't -- you
know, these things, all in all, the earring in his ear,

chewing gum, lives at home, maybe a little immature, these are
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the reasons that the State is giving for challenging this
individual. The fact that he happens to be a black African-
American, you’re telling me that's just incidental, Mr. Roger,
is that correct?

MR, ROGER: 1I'm not saying it’s just incidental, I'm
saying that it had no bearing on our decision.

THE COURT: And the reason being that he'’s young,
immature, the way he answered the questions, he’s a little
cavalier, and that’'s the reason why you want to exerclse your
-= your peremptory challenge?

MR. ROGER: For all the reasons I atatad, Judgs,
that’s correct.

THE COURT: That’'s a close call. I‘m going to allow
tha peremptory challenge over your objection. I just think,
after hearing that, and after indicating what Mr. Roger
indicated, he’s a young man, a lot of times prosecutors don’t
want young men, they want to exclude them, they want older
mature people. It’s a peremptory challenge, it’‘s not a
challenge for cause, and let the record reflect that.

Bring in back the jury.

{Proapective Jurors Reconvened)

THE COURT: The State could exercise ite sixth
peremptory challenge if it sees £it.

MR. ROGER: Thank and excuse Juror Number 350, Mr.

Evans.
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THE COURT: All right, Mr. Evans, please report back
to Room 1013. The clerk will call another prospactive juror?

THE CLERK: Badge number 351, Doris Stuart.

THE COURT: Doris Stuart. Take that same seat, Ms.
Stuart. How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Forty-two years.

THE COURT: All right. A long time, MBe. Stuart.

The qualifications regarding this particular case, you know
this case could go into two phases, the trial phase and the
penalty phase. If the jury finds the defendant guilty of
first degree murder then we go into the penalty phase. Do you
underatand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Yes.

THE COURT: AaAnd it’s incumbent upon the jury to
determine the punishment. And the possible punishments are
1ife with the possibility of parcle, life without the
poesibility of parcle, or the imposition of the death penalty.
Do you underastand chat?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you be --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: That's what I have a
problem with there.

THE COURT: Yeah, that’s why we’re here. That’s why
we’ve been here all morning and all aftermocon. Could you --

and the law says you should be able to consider them all
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equally and determine what the punishment, in this particular
case, should be. Do you understand that?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Yes.

THE COURT: So, my question to you is would you be
able to equally consider all the possible punishments, those
three punishments?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: No, I could not,

THE COURT: Why not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Well, death, I don‘t
believe in -- I don‘t think I have the right to decide whether
a person should live or die.

THE COURT: Then ia that a religious feeling, or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: No, it's not, it’s my
belief. It’s what I believe in, in my heart and my soul.

THE COURT: Have you always held that belief?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STUART: Yes, I have.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Please report back to Room 1013. The
clexrk call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge number 352, David Kelker.

THE COURT: David?

PROSBPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: Yes.

THE COURT: Take the same seat there. Again, if the

jury convicts the defendant of first degree murder, only if
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police or

understand that?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

foreman, road foreman.

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSBPECTIVE
THE COURT:

that reason then we go into the penalty phase. Do you

JUROR KELKER: Yes, sir.

Could you equally consider all the

punighments, life with, life without, and death?

JURCR KELKER: Yes, sir.

How long have ycu been in Las Vegas?
JUROR KELKER: Ten years.

What do you do for a living?

JUROR KELKER: I work for the National

Park Service at Lake Mead.

In what capacity?
JUROR KELKER: Equipment operator

All right. Are you married?

JUROR KELKBR: No, sir.

Children?

JUROR KELKER: No children.

You ever been in the military?

JURCR KELKER: Yesa, I have.

What branch?

JUROR KELKER: Army, ‘68 through °70.
Did you do anything with the military

court martialing?

PROBPECTIVE

JUROR KELKER: No, smir.
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THE COURT: You acguainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: The rangers up in the
park, yes.

THE COURT: Yeah. All right. The fact that you
know some rangers, because you work in the -- as an equipment
operator, that's not going to affect your deliberation?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR KELKER: No, sir.

THE COURT: You know you're not to give greater
waight or lesser weight to a police officer’s testimony,

aimply because they‘re a police officer. Do you underatand

that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: Yeg, I do.
THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: Just car vandalism.
THE COURT: They never caught the individualse?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: No, sir.
THE COURT: That’s not going to affect your
deliberationa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: Mo, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever or anyone closely
associated with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: No, air.

THE COURT: You aver serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: No, I haven’t.
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THE CCURT: Any reason you couldn’t be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KELKER: There’'s no reason.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cause,

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MS. McMAHON: Pase for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. The defense next peremptory
challenge? 18 the defense next?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor, we are.

MS. McMAHON: Your Honor, thank you for your
indulgence. The defense would thank and excuse Juror Number
338, Mr. Benoit.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Benoit, report back to
Room 1013. The clerk call ancther prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge number 353, Jacqueline Bell,

THE COURT: Jacqueline Bell?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: How long you been in lLas Vegas, Ms.
Bell?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Alwmcst seven years.

THE COURT: All right. Again, this is the type of
case, Ms, Bell, that could go into two phases; one is the
trlal phase and the other one's the penalty phase. If the
jury determines the defendant is quilty of first degree murder
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the penalty phase kicks in and the jury determines what the
punishment ia. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: [No audible response].

THE COURT: And there’'s three opticns under our law.
There’s life with the possibility of parole, life without the
posaibility of parole and imposition of death penalty. Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all of thoae
options in reaching a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I would like more
information on it.

THE COURT: Sure. You're going to get information.
1 mean, at the penalty phase we have evidence and testimony,
and we have argument, and we have instructions, and you'll be
given all the instructions. All we’re concerned about right
now is you have those three opticna, would you ecqually
consider them, and after you hear the evidence, you make a
determination as what you think is appropriate.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: You could do that? And how long you
been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Almost seven years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I work at Costco.
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THE COURT: All right. What do you do there?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Cashier.

THE COURT: Cashier. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Acquainted with anybedy in law
enforcementc?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely asaociated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: My stepfather, a long time
ago, but we’ze not really that close.

THE COURT: All right. What was the crime, do you
remember?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I don’t even remember.

THE COURT: All right. That’s not going to affect
your deliberationa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.
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THE COURT: How old are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Forty-two.

THE COURT: Okay. Any reason you couldn’t be a fair
and impartial jurozr in thias case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: No.

THE COURT: Thank you. Questions, pass for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor. Good
afterncon, ma‘am. On the sheet that you filled out, on page
19 where there’s an explanation sheet, you wrote I don’t know
who could really decide the guilt or innocence of anyone. Do
you feel that it would be difficult for you to sit in judgment
of another human being?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yeah, but I feel it’‘s my
obligation.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. If you are selected as a juror
and the State presented asvidence to you, as well as the
defense, at the conclueion of the trial you felt that the
State had proven the defendant guilty of two murders in the
firat degree, beyond a reascnable doubt, could you come into
this courtroom and convict or announce a verdict of guilty in
front of the deafendant?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yea.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And if that should happen, as the
Judge has told you, you would have to go intoc a penality phase.
And at that time it would be like a second trial, but probably
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a lot shorter. You’d hear evidence and you’d be given jury
instructions, and you'd have to determine the appropriate
punighment. If, after hearing all the evidence, you felt the
only appropriate punishment for the two killings would be the
death penalty, could you yourself come into this courtroom and
announce or vote a verdict of death?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: You're certain about that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Questions, pase for cause?

MR, LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor. Good afterncon. How
ars you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Okay.

MR. LaPORTA: You could consider all three equally,
is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: After the guilt phase, if the State is
successful in convicting of Mr. Thomas of intentionally
murdering two other human beings, you could congider life with
or without the possibility of parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Well, I'd like more
information.

MR. LaPORTA: Well, without more information, what

I'm asking you is at this juncture could you consider -- could
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you conceive of a situation where you would consider all three
equally, after having just heard all the evidence, and
convicting Mr., Thomas of intenticnally murdering two other
human beinga?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: You could consider the two other forma
of punishment, life with or without the posesibility of parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: Do you consider life imprisonment a
harsh punishment or do you consider --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yea.

MR. LaPORTA: -- it giving the defendant a break?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: I consider it a harsh
punishment.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. You understand that the
State haes to prove beyond a reasonable doubt, at least one of
their aggravators, before you can coneider the death penalty,
you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. And you also understand
that because they proved beyond a reasonable doubt, one of
their aggravators, that you do not have to return the death
penalty? You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes,

MR. LaPORTA: All right. That you -- even though

I-244

AA5442



w

® ~1 0 W’

10
11
12
13
14
15
i6
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

they’'ve proven that, you can still congider and impose life
with or without the possibility of parole?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR BELL: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: All right. Pass for cause, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. The State’s seventh?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Judge, we’ll thank and excuse Ms.
Bell, 353.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Bell, please report back
to Room 1013,

Clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge number 355, Valerie Patronelli.

THE COURT: Take that same seat up there, Ms.
Patronelli. How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: Five years.

THE COURT: All right. And what we’ve been going
through, Ma. Patronelll, is this ¢ase could perhaps go into
two phases, a trial phase and a penalty phase. And if the
Jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder the
penalty phase kicks in and by law the jury imposes punishment.
They could either -- they could consider life with the
poseibilicy of parole, life without the possibility of parocle,
or the imposition of the death penalty. Do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: Yes.
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THE COURT: And you would equally consider all of
those options and make a determination?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PATRONELLI: No, sir.

THE COURT: And why not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: I feel if a perscon
has been convicted by jurore to be guilty, that they should be
sentenced to death.

THE COURT: You'd put everybody to death then,
everybody would be put to death in a murder trial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: Yeah. If they're
convicted by --

THE COURT: Where did you get that notion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELL: -- twelve other
people.

THE COURT: Well, that’s not the law though, don’t
you understand that’s not the law of the state, it’'s not the
law --

PROSPECTIVE SUROR PATRONELLI: No.

THE COURT: -~ of the United States, it'’'s not the
law of this etate, it’s not the law of all the fifty states
that we have. Do you underatand that? 8o, you just don’t
want to follow the law, is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: No, I'm not saying
that.

THE COURT: What are you saying?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: What I‘m saying is --
what I'm saying ie I'm tired of people living off the syatem.
I mean, I'm a single person trying tc support myself. Now,
some of these people that get life imprisonment, they’'ve got
more dental than I have, more medical than I have --

THE COURT: I don’t want to hear you anymore.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PATRONELLI: -~ a roof over their
head --

THE COURT: Any other judgment here, please?
Anybody have a motion?

MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Report back toc Room 1013.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PATRONELLI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge number 357, Eugene Steffek.

THE COURT: 8Sir, take that same seat, sir, How long
you been in Las Vegaa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: Two years.

THE COURT: Could you equally consider, if thias goes
into a penalty phase, life with the poeeibility of parole,
l1ife without the possibilicy of parole, or the imposition of
the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: Aand if it'a --

'HE COURT: This is no laughing matter, please.

We’re not -- this is a very serious matter, and ~--
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: First degree murder, I
would --

THE COURT: Yes. You have to find --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: -- I would say that --

THE COURT: -- the defendant guilty of first degree
murder, then the penalty --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: -- I would say that --

THE COURT: -- phase kicks in, and the law provides
the three possible penalties. And it’s up to the jury, after
hearing the facts and circumstances, they determine what the
beat appropriate penalty is. And that’s the -- that'a your
prercgative, you do what you want to do, the jurora -- now,
could you equally considsr those three possible penalties?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: No.

THE COURT: Why?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: Because I believe if a
person has committed a first degree murder, that it should be
the death penalty.

THE COURT: And where did you get that belief?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR STEFFEK: That's -- ever since I
bacame of age to even think about it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Yocur Honor.

THE QOURT: Please report back to Room 1013.

Ancther prospective juror?
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THE CLERK: Badge number 359, Sharon Teichman.
THE COURT: Ms. Telchman, could you equally consider
the possibility of parcle, life without, or the

4 | death penalty?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Yes, I can.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Seven years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?
FROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: I work for a law f£irm
room supervisor.

THE COURT: What law firm is that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TEICHMAN: Kummer Kaempfer Bonnar

13 | and Renshaw.

14
15| elvil law
16
17
i8
19 | have four
20
21| military?
22
23

THE COURT: It seems to be like mostly a civil, a
£izm?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TEICHMAN: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. And are you married?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR TBICHMAN: No, I‘m divorced, but I
small children.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever been in the

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No.
THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law

24 | enforcement?

25

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: The closest person I
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know is a Henderson policeman who’a the father or a coaches --

husband of a softball team.

THE COURT: All right. But that‘s not going to
affect your deliberationa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Not at all.

THE COURT: And yocu understand you’re not to give
greater weight or lesser weight to a police officer’s
testimony simply because they’'re a police officer? 1Is that
the way you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TEICHMAN: I understand.

THE COURT: Have you ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever -- have you or anyone
closely associated with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No, I have not.

THE COURT: You ever served on a jury bheforxe?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No, I have not.

THE COURT: Any reason you couldn’t be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No.

THE COURT: Thank you. Questions, pass for causge?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Questione, pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor, briefly. Good

afternoon. You stated earlier that you could consider all
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three poseible forme of punishment. You understand that you
only get to that level or to that phase if you and eleven
other jurors have found that Mr. Thomas has intentionally
murdered two human beinga?

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Correct.

MR. LaPORTA: You undexrstand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR TEICHMAN: Yes.

MR. LaPORTA: And, knowing that, you atill feel that

you could censider life with or without the possibility of
parolae?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Yes, I do.

MR. LaPORTA: Do you consider the life in priscn a
harsh punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: Yes, I do.

MR. LaPORTA: And do you think that by -- if you
were to find your way, if he is so convicted, to vote for one
of the life’s, do you feel like you might be cutting him a
break or do you feel like you would be punishing him in this
situation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: I feel they’'re all
punishments in some degree.

MR. LaPORTA: Okay. But none are really breaks?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEBICHMAN: No,

MR. LaPORTA: Is that your feeling?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR TEICHMAN: No, I don’t think they
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are a break.

MR. LaPORTA: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: The defense next peremptory challenge?

MS. McCMAHON: Your Honor, the defense would excuse
Jurcor Number 318, Ma. Grannon.

THE COURT: Please report back to Room 1013. Clerk,
call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: BSadge number 360, James Lewis.

THE COURT: Just take that same seat, Mr. Lewis.
what did you do with your arm, hurt it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: I had surgery Monday, sir.

THE COURT: Oh, are you all right now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Oh, yeah.

THE COURT: Are you able to concentrate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Shoot.

THE COURT: Sir, this case might ba a case that
involves two possible phases. One would be the trial phase.
If the jury finds and determines that the defendant is guilty
beyond a reasonable doubt, then we would kick into the penalty
phase. &And, again, by statute and law it's incumbent upon the
jury to impose the punighment. The options are 1life with the
possibility of parole, life without the posaibilirty of parole,
and the imposition of the death penalty. Do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Yes, ®ir.
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THE COURT: Would you ecually consider all those

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Twanty-two years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: I work for the Department

of Prisons as an accountant.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, what prison?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Indian Springs.

THE COURT: How long you been doing that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Two years now.

THE COURT: And you work actually up in the prison

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: It's in the admin building

but I have occasion to go out on --

THE COURT: And so, you're an employee of the

18 | Department of Prisons?

19
20
21
22
23
24

25| years?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You’'re not considered a peace officer?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR LEWIS: No.

THE COURT: You’'re a civil employee then?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you've been doing that for two
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PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JUROR LEWIS:

Yes, sir.

Is that going to affect your

deliberations, the fact that you work in a prison?

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:
aspect?

PROSPECTIVE

THE CQURT:
like that?

PROSPECTIVE

thers and talk to the
disciplinaries.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
personnel.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE

JUROR LEWIS:

No.

That’s just in the administrative

JUROR LEWIS:

You’'re not out in the yard or anything

JUROR LEWIS:

Yes, alr.

I have occasion to go ocut

inmates sometime who sit on

Okay. You married?

JUROR LEWIS:

Yes, sir.

What does your wife do?

JUROR LEWIS:

Children?
JUROR LEWIS:

8he works at Bally’s,

Two children.

What do they do for a living?

JUROR LEWIS:

Pardon me, sir?

What do they do for a living?

JUROR LEWIS:

Well, my son’s a GIS

technician for the City, and my daughter‘s a high schoocl

student.
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erime?

THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE CCURT:

Okay. You ever been the victim of a

JUROR LEWIS: No, smir.

Have you or anyone closely associated to

you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

deliberations?

eivil?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSBPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

JUROR LEWIS: I was,

What were you arrested for?

JUROR LEWIS: Twelve years ago, a DUI.
For?

JUROR LEWIS: A DUI.

And it was resolved?

JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

And that'e not going to affect your

JUROR LEWIS: No, sir.
Have you ever served on a jury before?
JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir, twice.

What was the first time, criminal or

JUROR LEWIS: Criminal.

What was the charge?

JUROR LEWIS: Burglary.

And you were picked as a juror?
JUROR LEWIS: Yes.

Wera you picked as foreperson?
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PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JUROR LEWIS: No, sir.

You deliberated the case?

JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

Without telling me what the verdict, did

the jury reach a verdict?

JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

The second time, criminal or civil?
JUROR LEWIS: Criminal.

What was the charge?

JUROR LEWIS: Child molestation.
Were you picked as a juror?

JUROR LEWIS: Yes, sir.

Were you picked as foreperson?
JUROR LEWIS: No, sir.

Without telling me what the verdict was,

16| did the jury reach a verdict?

17

18

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JUROR LEWIS: No, sir.
All right. Any reason ycu couldn’t ba

15| fair and impartial in this case?

20
21
22
23
24
25

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
MR. ROGER:
THE COURT:
MS. McMAHON:
THE COURT:

JUROR LEWIS: No.
All right. Questions, pass for cause?
Pass for cause.
Questions, pass for cause?
pasa for cause, Your Honor.

The State's eighth and final peremptory

I-256

AA5454



B W N

w @ 3 o wum

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

challenge.

MR. ROGER: We’ll waive our last peremptory
challenge.

THE COURT: The defense eighth and final peremptory
challenge?

MR. LaPORTA: The Court's indulgence.

(Off-record colloquy)

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, the defense thanks and
excuses Juror Number 324.

THE COURT: What's the name? Mr. Layton?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR LAYTON: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. Report back to Room 1013.
The clerk, call another prospective juror.

THE CLERK: Badge number 361, Roger Pankewicz.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas, Mr.
Pankewicz?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR PANKEWICZ: ‘Two and a half years.

THE COURT: All right. Again, this case might be a
case that involves two phases. One would be the trial phase.
only if the jurors find the defendant gquilty of first degree
murder, if they don’t then that’s -- wa don’t go into the
penalty phase, but if they do the penalty phase provides that
the jury set punishment as either life with the possibility of
parole, life without, or imposition of the death penalty. Do

you understand that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider all of those
options after hearing the facte?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: Yes.

THE COURT: And where did you come from before you
came to Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANREWICZ: Michigan and
california.

THE COURT: What type of work did you do there?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: I was always self-
employed. I had my own business.

THE COURT: Doing what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: Antigue buglness and a
couple of flower shops.

THE COURT: All right. And are you working here

now?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No, I'm retired.
THE COURT: Retired. Are you married?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR PANKEWICZ: No.
THE COURT: Children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.
THE COURT: You ever been in the military?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: Neo.
THE COURT: Acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of a
crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: I have. My business
was broken into a couple times.

THE COURT: Did they ever catch the individualas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.

THE COURT: You've never had to appear in court?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.

THE COURT: That’s not going to affect your
deliberationsa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyene closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: I had a DUI about
twenty years ago in California.

THE CQURT: That’'s not going to affect your
deliberation, ie 1t? You don’'t hold that against the State or
anything?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: No, I haven’t.

THE COURT: Any reascn you couldn’t be fair and
impartial on this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR PANKEWICZ: I don’t think so.
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THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Questions, pass for
cauge?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Pass for cause, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: All right. Let‘s call two alternate
jurors. Ms. Clerk?

THE CLERK: Badge number 363, Louis Mizzoni and
badge number 364, Mercedes Cerice-Ortiz,

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Mizzoni?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MIZZONI: Yes, alr.

THE COURT: Pleage take that seat up there. And Ms.
Cerice-Ortiz, take the geat down there.

Mr. Mizzoni, you’ve heard the queations we’ve talked
about here, and you’ve been in court -- no, down here, ma‘’am.
This is a case that might get involved in two phases, and only
if the jury finds the defendant guilty of first degree murder.
Then we might go into a penalty phase. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MIZZ0NI: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And the jury sets punishment, and by law
the posaible punishments are life with, life without, and the
death penalty. Could you equally consider those punishmenta?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MIZZONI: I have a problem with
life with parole.

THE COURT: And why is that, sir? I mean --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR MIZZONI: I don’t feel anybody
that‘s convicted of a double murder first degree ghould ever
walk.

THE COURT: Well, this is what the law provides,
though. You can coneider all of it and you make your
determination based on the facts.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MIZZONI: I understand that, Your
Honor, but in my mind there’s just no excuse for that, as far
as I'm concerned. I'm eorry.

MR. LaPORTA: Challenge for cause, Your Honor.

MR. SCHWARTZ: No objectionm.

THE COURT: Pleass report back to Room 1013.
Another prospective?

THE CLERK: Badge number 365, Barbara Wilson.

THE COURT: Ms. Wilscn, take that seat up there.
You’ve heard what we had to say, Ms. Wilson. Could you
equally or would you be able to egually consider all of those
punishments, life with, life without, and the death penalty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Yes, I could.

THE COURT: How long you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Six years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Retired.

THE COURT: What did you do when you worked?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Oh, I worked in data
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processing at a gteel

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

company .
All right. Are you married?
JUROR WILSON: Yes.

What does your husband do, is he

JUROR WILSON: Retired too.
What did he do for a living?
JUROR WILSON: Oh, he was a produce

9 | manager for Von‘s Foods.

10
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THE COQURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

14 | the new software.

15
16
17

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

18{ enforcement?

19
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PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

24 | policeman in --

25

THE COURT:

Children? De you have any children?
JUROR WILSON: A grown daughter.

What does your daughter deo for a living?
JUROR WILSON: She travels and promotes

Have you ever been in the military?
JUROR WILSON: No.

You acquainted with anybody in law

JUROR WILSON: No, not here.

All right. Anyplace?

JUROR WILSON: In Califormia.

And who do you know, just a friend?
JUROR WILSON: Yeah, thare was a

Friende?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Yeah.

THE COURT: Not relatives, friends?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Friends, friends

THE COURT: The fact that you know -- have
that ara police officers, that's not going to affect
deliberationa?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Oh, no.

.

friends
your

THE COURT: You understand you’re not to give

greater weight or lesser weight to a police officer’'s
testimony simply because they’'re a police officer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Right.

THE COURT: You ever been the victim of a ¢

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely asso
you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: No.

THE COURT: You ever serve on a jury?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Yes.

THE COURT: When wae that, one time or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Two times.

THE COURT: Two times. Was the first one,
or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Criminal.

THE COURT: What was the charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Murder.
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2| penalty case?

3 PROSPECTIVE
[ ] THE COURT:
5| state?

6 PROSPECTIVE
7 THE COURT:
8 PROSPECTIVE
9 THE COURT:
10 PROSPECTIVE
11 THE COURT:
12 PROSPECTIVE
13 THE COURT:

You were picked -- waa it a death

JUROR WILSON: (No audible responsel.

You were picked -- where was that, what

JUROR WILSON: In Los Angeles.

You were picked as a juror?

JUROR WILSON: Right.

You deliberated the case?

JUROR WILSON: Yes.

Were you picked as foreperson?

JUROR WILSON: No.

Without telling me what the verdict was,

14| did the jury reach a verdict?

15 PROSPECTIVE
16 THE COURT:
17| civilz

18 PROSPECTIVE
19 THE COURT:
20 PROSPECTIVE
21 THE COURT:
22 PROSPECTIVE
23 THE COURT:

JUROR WILSON: They did.

And your second, was it a criminal or a

JUROR WILSON: Civil,

Were you picked as a jurox?
JUROR WILSON: Right.

You deliberated the case?
JUROR WILSON: Right.

Without telling me what the verdict was,

24| did the jury reach a verdict?

25 PROSPECTIVE

JUROR WILSON: They did.
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THE COURT: All right. Any reason you couldn’t be
fair and partial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: No.

THE COURT: Questions, pasa for cause?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Just one, Your Honor. Mrs. Wilson,
if you were selected as a juror, or an alternate juror in this
trial and you had to f£i1l in for one of the other jurors, you
would then deliberate on the case itself. Do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Right.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And 1f you felt that the State had
presented evidence beyond a reasonable doubt that the
defendant was guilty of two first degree murders, could you
come into this courtroom and announce that verdict in front of
the defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Yes.

THE COURT: And if you felt, after hearing the
penalty phase evidence, that there was sufficient evidence to
warrant tha imposition of the death penalty, could you
likewise impose the penalty of death yourself?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WILSON: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you very much, ma‘am.

THE COURT: Pass for cause? Pass for cause?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. ROGER: Yea, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Defense pass for cause?

MR. LaPCRTA: Yes, Your Honor, we pass for cause.

MS. McMAHON: Yes.

THE COURT: What about you, Me. -- ig it Ms. Cerice-
ortiz?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Yead.

THE COURT: How long have you been in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Eighteen years.

THE COURT: And again, if this goes into two phases,
if the trial -- at the trial the jury is convinced beyond a
reasonable doubt that the defendant is quilty of first degree
murder, it goes into a penalty phase. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-QRTIZ: Yes.

THE CQURT: And you are to consider, in assesaing
punishment, the options of life with the possibility of
parcle, life without the possibility of parcle, and the
imposition of the death penalty. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you equally consider those
options?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: I would.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: I work in a casino.

THE COURT: Doing what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Pit clerk.
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THE COURT: All right. Are you married? Are you
married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: 1I‘m separated.

THE COURT: Separated. Do you have any children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: I have an eleven-
year-old daughter.

THE COURT: Eleven-year-old daughter. Have you ever
been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No, sir.

TEE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: I have of couple of
acquaintance -- friends.

THE COURT: Friends. But that’s not going to affect
your deliberations?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No, air.

THE COURT: You know you'‘re not to give greater
welght or lessar weight to a police officer’s teatimony simply
because they’'re a police officer. Po you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Yes.

THE COURT: You ever been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-CRTIZ: My house was
burglarized.

THE COURT: Did they ever catch the individual?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No.
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THE COURT: And that’s not going to affect your
deliberation, is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone cleosely assoclated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: You aver serve on a jury before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Any reagon you couldn’t be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-CRTIZ: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you so much. Questions, pass for
cause?

MR. ROGER: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: Questions, pass for cause?

Ms. McMAHON: I have just a few questions, Your
Honor, if I may. Good afternoon. My questions relate to the
jury questionnaire that was, of course, filled out last week.
And you’'ve heard, while sitting here, me ask other potential
jurors questions too. Do you understand that should you be
involved in the jury’s decision and find my client guilty,
that you're going to have to also determine an appropriate
punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CERICE-ORTIZ: Yes, ma’am.

MS. McMAHON: Do you understand now that in
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determining the appropriate punishment, that you muset consider
a defendant’s background, educatiocnal information, his
childhood experience and other factors in determining an
appropriate punishment?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CELICE-ORTIZ: Yem, I do.

MS. McMAHON: Seo, in fact, your answers on this are
not correct, is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CELICE-ORTIZ: Yes.

MS. McMAHON: And the other question, which I‘ve
also asked other jurors before, do you understand now that the
State has the burden of proving any defendant guilty, and the
defendant in a criminal case does not have to, is not required
to prove him or herself innocent of the charges? Do you
understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CELICE-ORTIZ: Yes, ma’am.

MS. McMAHON: Okay. And you can follow both of
those ideas, is that correct, you said?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR CELICE-ORTIZ: [No audible
responsa] .

MS. McMAHON: Thank you. I have no further
gueations. We’d pass for cause.

THE COURT: Any peremptory?

MR. ROGER: Waive.

THE COURT: Any peremptory?

MR. LaPORTA: Waive, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, thank you so much.
I know it’s been -- waiting around. Thank you very much.
You're excused. Everybody go back to Room 1013.

I‘d 1ike the clerk to swear the jury to try the
case. We’ll swear the alternate jurors in separately. And
you’ra Alternate Juror Number One, all right, Me. Wilsen, and
you're Alternate Juror Number Two, all right, Ma. Ortiz? So,
the rest of the jurors, pleases stand up, raise your right hand
and be sworn.

JURY I3 SWORN

THE COURT: Please stand up, raise your right hand
and be sworn.

ALTERNATE JURORS ARE SWORN

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, it’a incumbent
that I read this to you, that no juror may declare to his
fellow jurors any fact relating to the case as of his own
knowledge. And if any juror discovers during the trial or
after the jury has raetired that he or any other jurcr has
personal knowledge of any fact in controversy in the case,
please disclose this situation to me by way of my bailiff,
outside the presence of the other jurors.

You may individually take notes, and after the
receas the bailiff will pass out paper and pencil to you. But
don't let that distract you from what you haar on the witness

stand.
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I should -- I'm going to read this to you also.
Thers’'s a few instructions, and please follow them implicitly.
It's very lmportant that you follow these instructions. 1I'll
now say a few words about your conduct as jurors.

First, do not talk to each other about the case or
about anyone who has anything to do with it until the end of
the case when you go to the jury room to decide your verdict.

Second, do not talk with anyone else about this case
or about anyone who has anything to do with it until the trial
has ended and you have been discharged as jurors. Anyone elge
includes members of your family and your friends. You may
tell them that you are a juror, but don’t tell them anything
about the case until after you have been discharged by me.

Third, do not let anyone talk to you about the case
or about anycne who has anything to do with it. If someone
should try to talk to you, please report this immediately to
my bailiff, who will report it to me.

Don’t read any news stories, or articlea, or listen
to any radio or reports about the case or about anycne who has
anything to do with it.

Fifth, do not do any research such as consulting
dictionaries or other reference materials. And do not make
any investigation about the case on your own.

8ixth, if you need to communicate with me, eimply
glve a signed note to the bailiff, who will give it to me.
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And seventh, do not make up your mind about what the
verdict should be until after you have gone to the jury room
to decide the case, and you and your fellew jurors have
discussed the evidence. Pleage keep an open mind until then.

I'm going to ask the clerk to read tha -- aloud, the
information and the plea that was made thereto by the
defendant,

{The Clerk read the Information)
PROCEEDINGS CONTINUED AND PREVIOUSLY TRANSCRIBED
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PROCEEDINGS IN PRQGRESS
(The Jury is present)

e o
LIS

clerk reads the Information}

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, that completes the
reading of the Information. What we’re going to do now is
we’'re going to take our ten-minute recess before -- and then
we’re going to come back and hear opening statements.

Before I give you any recess, by law I have to
admonish you. And it’s very important, and please abide by
this admonishment; you’ll hear it many times. It’'s three
admonishments.

Don’t converse among yourselves or with anyone else
on any subject connected with the trial; don’t read, watch or
listen to any report of or commentary on the trial or any
person connected with the trial by any medium of information,
including, without limitation, newspapers, television and
radio; and don’t form or express any opinion on any subject
connected with the trial until the cause is finally submitted
to you.

That'baaically meansg you can go out and talk among
yourselves, talk about inter-league baseball or whatever, but
don’t talk about the trial. Wait 'til you’re in the jury
deliberation room.

When you go home, I'm not going to sequester you,

but you’re on your honor and my direction, don‘t read, watch

II-2

8JDC12212
AA5475




14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

or listen to any reports about the trial; you’re not to do

that, very important. And don’t form or express any opinion
on any subject connected with the trial, too; you don‘t go out
and say, well, I think so and so. You wait until you form or
express any opinion when you’re in the jury deliberation room.

And again, as I said, you might see counsel in --
outside. They’re not going to engage you in chit-chat because
they don’t want to be accused of currying favor, But don’t --
you know, please don‘t take that as an affront.

That being said, we’ll take a ten-minute recess.

MR. LaPORTA: Judge, can we approach before the --
weé break for the recess?

THE COURT: When the jury leaves?

MR. ROGER: Now, Judge.

MR. LaPORTA: Just right now, Judge.

(Off-record bench conference)
* * & * *
(Jury is not present)

THE COURT: All right, we had discussione in
chambers about allowing certain individuals to stay in the
courtroom; is that correct? Who do you want to stay in the
courtroom on behalf of the State?

MR. SCHWARTZ: The family of the victims.

THE COURT: Any objection to that?

MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honor.
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MR. LaPORTA: No, Your Homor, as long as they’re not
part of the guilt phase.

THE COURT: All right. And that’'s correct, they’re
not part of the guilt phase?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes.

THE COURT: They may testify to the penalty but not
to guilt.

You want anybody to stay in the courtroom?

MR. LaPORTA: The defendant’s mother, Ms. Georgia
Thomas. The same for her, she will not be testifying at the

penalty -- I mean, at the guilt phase, but --

=]

HE COURT: Any objection to that?

2

SCHWARTZ: Neo, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Then that’ll be allowed, but
everybody else will be excluded. So any and all witnesses are
excluded from the courtroom and admonished not to discuss your
testimony with any other witness.

Mr. LaPorta?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes. Your Honor, this is a motion for
a mistrial, and it’'s based upon two different things, all '
right.

The first thing that I want to address is, first of
all, there are absolutely no African-Americans on the jury
panel. There is one alternate that is sitting on that -- is

sitting as an alternate. Judge, I understand the status of
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the Supreme Court law that we

Commissioner’s gselection process is unfair and biased.

County, and I undergtand that

But considering the
the present selection process
prejudiced, what I want to do

Thomas’'s rights to c¢laim that

must demonstrate that the Jury

I'm

we’'re not able to do that.

fact that sometime in the future
may be considered biased or

is preserve for the recoxrd Mr.

he didn’t get a jury of his

peers based upon any future unfairness that could be

determined. So that’s the one -- the one area, Judge.
Now, for the record, we did have one Mr. Felton who
is an African-American, Mr. Luster an African-American, Mr.

Sheppard who is an African-American, and a Stuart who is an
African-American. All four did not -- were not death-penalty
qualified; either they could not consider equally all three
forms of punishment, or they couldn’t consider one entirely.
That clearly led to the situation where they just weren’'t
qualified to sit on this jury. All right?
There was one particular juror, and this is the
second part of my argument and motion for mistrial, who was
clearly entitled to sit on that jury, and that was Juror

Number 351, Mr. Stuart, who was challenged --

THE COURT: Is it Stuart?
MR. LaPORTA: No, Mr. Wilson -- no, I'm sorry, Your
Honor --
II-5
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THE COURT: Kevin Evans?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Evans.

MR. LaPORTA: N
here.

MS. McMAHON: Kevin Evans.

MR. LaPORTA: Kevin Evans. And there was a Batson
challenge to that, Your Honor, and the State’s reasons were
that he was chewing gum, that his attitude appeared to be
cavalier -- to the defense it didn’t appear to be cavalier --
and that he was twenty-two years of age. I didn’t realize
that your age had anything to do with your ability to
determine whether -- your judgment and your ability to sit on
a jury. And also that he lived at home.

Judge, we just don't consider these adequate reasons
to have kicked this particular and only African-American off
of this jury. And for that reason, Your Honor, we'’ll move for
a mistrial.

THE COURT: State want to respond?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor, briefly.

Your Honor, with regard to Mr. Evansg, it was his
maturity, not so much as his chronological age. Of course he
was young, twenty-two years of age, but he acted very
immaturely in the situation where he confronted himself today.
He’s being selected as a potential juror in a capital murder

cage. I watched him before he was even called; he was sitting
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in the back, kind of slouching, smirking, chewing gum. Very
much like the fellow who sat in this corner that the Court,
ecause of his behavi
leave the courtroom. Mr. Evans wasn’t far from that.

When he got up into the jury box his attitude
changed a little bit, but he still slouched in the chair, he
was still chewing his gun -- gum. He was not too excited
about answering the questions, and he did hesitate when we
asked him about the death penalty.

As Mr. LaPorta mentioned, there were about gix or
seven other African-Americans who were on this panel, so there
was a good cross-section of the community here in court, but
many of them could not, in any event, vote for the death
penalty under any circumstances, so they were excused.

THE COURT: All right. The defense motion for
mistrial are denied on both grounds.

Anything else to come before the Court?

MR. LaPORTA: No, Judge.

THE COURT: Anything else?

MR. SCHWARTZ: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

(The Court recessed)
(Jury is present)
THE COURT: Mr. LaPorta I guess is making a phone

call. Any objection if we just start without him?
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MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honor, that’d be fine.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Roger, you need the

MR. ROGER: No, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. We’ll hear the State's
opening statement now, ladies and gentlemen.

PLAINTIFF'S OPENING STATEMENT

MR, ROGER: May it please the Court, counsel. Good
afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

Monday, April 15th, 1996 was a very dark day for two
young men. Carl Dixon, twenty-three years of age, Matthew
Gianakes, age twent re prep room workers at the Lone
Star Steakhouse. This is located at 3131 North Rainbow at the
corner of Cheyenne and Rainbow in the northwest area of town.
These two young men went to work at 8:00 a.m. in order to
prepare the meals for that day. They worked in the pantry
area where they carved up the steaks and other meals which
were supposed to be prepared ahead of time for that day.

Little did these two young men know that something
evil was lurking out in the parking lot, this evil person who
is the defendant, Marlo Thomas. Little did these two young
men know that Marlo Thomas, formerly employed by the Lone Star
Steakhouse, had driven from Hawthorne, Nevada that previous

night with his wife Angela Love-Thomas and his fifteen-year-

old brother-in-law, Kenya Hall. They stayed at his aunt’s
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house, Emma Nash, and his cousin Barbara Smith the evening
prior to the killing. And somewhere around 7:00 a.m. they all
loaded up into Ang
Star Steakhouse.

Vincent Oddo, the manager at the restaurant,
happened to be performing his morning dutiesg, and he had
observed a young man by the name of Stephen Hemmes,
H-E-M-M-E-$ arrive for work as a pantry worker. Mr. Hemmes
wag wearing sandals, which was inappropriate attire for him to
work in the kitchen, and he told Mr. Hemmes to go home and go
to -- go get some regular shoes on.

The defendant was outside with Kenya Hall. He had
gotten ocut of the vehicle; he went back into the vehicle and
obtained a revolver. This was a Smith & Wesson five-shot
revolver; it was loaded. The defendant told Kenya Hall, well,
let’s go inside; he told Angela to stay outsaide.

And it is at that point that Marlo Thomas and
fifteen-year-old Kenya Hall went up to the back door of the
restaurant; it’s the west door, which leads into the kitchen
and pantry area. Steve -- Stephen Hemmes was exiting the
restaurant in order to go home, and he approached the
defendant. Stephen Hemmes had worked with the defendant at
the Lone Star restaurant. They exchanged some minimal
conversation. At that point the defendant asked Stephen

Hemmes where he was going. Mr. Hemmes told him that he had to
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go home to change his shoes. The defendant then asked him how

long he was going to be gone. Mr. Hemmes responded, about

It is at that point that both Mr. Hall, the fifteen-
year-old, and the defendant entered the restaurant, going into
the west doors into the pantry area. The defendant had his
Smith & Wesson revolver, and both he and Mr. Hall went
directly to the manager’s office. Vince Oddo, the manager,
was on the telephone at the time; he heard the door -- knock
on the door, and he answered it. Much to his surprise, his
astonishment and horror, he was faced with the barrel of a
gun, and the defendant was holding it. He told the police
that day that the defendant demanded the money. Vincent 0Oddo
immediately complied; he went down on the floor and started to
open the floor safe.

At that point the defendant handed the gun to the
fifteen-year-old, Kenya Hall, and told him, after the safe was
open to kill him. Mr. Oddo continued opening the safe as Mr.
Hall stood nearby with the gun pointed at him.

It is at that point that the defendant confronted
the two kitchen workers. The physical evidence suggests that
the defendant went into the kitchen area, the pantry area
where Matthew Gianakes was working. According to the physical
evidence and the reasonable inferences, the defendant grabbed

a large meat-cutting knife which was on the pantry table where
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some steaks were being cut. He stabbed Mr. Gianakes once in

the left back, striking the left lung. As Mr. Gianakes turned

into the left chest, striking the heart. Mr. Gianakes was
able to leave, running out of the restaurant, where he
eventually collapsed at the Rebel gas station which was
nearby.

During this period of time Mr. Oddo had turned over
the money in three Bank of America bank bags to young Kenya
Hall. And much to the good graces of Kenya Hall and the luck
of Vincent Oddo, Kenya Hall did not abide by the instructions
which were given to him by the defendant. After the money was
turned over, Kenya Hall turned around and Vince Oddo took off
running. He ran out of the front door, across the street,
through a parking lot and into an Albertson’s shopping center,
where he eventually called the police.

Meanwhile, the defendant, taking the same knife that
he used to kill Matthew Gianakes, went into the men’'s room
where Carl Dixon was. He had seen both of these individuals
when he entered the pantry area of the restaurant. He
confronted Carl Dixon. Recognizing that a robbery was being
taken place in the manager‘’s office, recognizing that Kenya
Hall was there, he confronted Carl Dixon. Carl Dixon fought
for his life. He had stab wounds to his arms, to his hands,

but unfortunately he was unable to fend off his attacker, his
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friend. He had worked with the defendant at the Lone Star
Steakhouse. In total, young Carl Dixon received nineteen stab

G e 1 e R 2 o mmtan e
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At that point the defendant ran out to the car where
Angela was waiting. Kenya Hall was there, and he learned that
Vince Oddo, the manager, had gotten away.

Almost immediately the car took off and they went
back over to Emma Nash’s house. And he spoke with Emma Nash
and Barbara Smith. He had blood on his pants, blcocod on his

S - 1

shirt. He ha

P} -

the murder weapon with him, he had the Smith &

[er

Wesson revolver in his possession. And he told his aunt and
cougin that he had done something which was going to land him
in prison, that he had possibly killed two pecple. He began
to count out the money, and he gave the two ladies a thousand
dollars to give to his mother, indicating that his mother
needed the thousand dollars. He gave the Smith & Wesson
revolver to Emma Nash, and asked her to hold it and give it to
her son, Matthew.

He then went outside into the back yard. They lived
at 2505 -- can’t remember the street, but there’s a desert
area behind. Either the defendant or young Kenya Hall threw
away the bloody pants, the bloody shirt, the carving knife, in

the desert. They immediately took off for Hawthorne.
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Meanwhile, a criminalist and police detectives
responded to the Lone Star restaurant. They spoke with

Towimes eabiom ol Trd TV omen woma
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who th
robber was, who the kidnapper was. And Vincent Oddo, without
hesitation, told them that it was Marlo Thomas, a former
employee.

Stephen Hemmes, who had the good fortune of wearing

the wrong shoes that day, had responded to the restaurant, and

he, too, told the detectives that it was Marlo Thomas who had
been at the restaurant just a short time earlier. Detectives
immediately put out a broadcast, requesting that all law
enforcement individuals try to stop the defendant.

A criminalist arrived at this bloody scene. They
found a small pool of blood near the freezer in the pantry
area, presumably the blood of Matthew Gianakes. He had
collapsed over at the Rebel store; he was taken to University
Medical Center, where he was pronounced dead a short time
later.

A c¢riminalist then went into the men’s room,
certainly a bloody scene, smear marks on the walls and the
partitions of the urinal. Young Carl Dixon was on his back,
dead at the scene.

Later that afternoon, detectives learned that the
defendant had once lived in the area of Emma Nash’s house.

They went to the residence. Both Emma Nash and Barbara Smith
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gave statements to the detectives indicating what had taken
place. They tcold detectives that there was bloody clothes cut
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L
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desert, a knife. BEmma Nash recovered the Swmith &
Wesson revolver which was given to her by the defendant.

Later that afternoon, somewhere around 1:00 or 2:00
o’clock that afternocon, Nevada Highway patrolmen spotted
Angela lLove, the defendant and young Kenya Hall near
Hawthorne, Nevada. The vehicle was pulled over and all three
individuals were placed under arrest.

Kenya Hall spoke with David Bailey, a Nevada Highway
Patrol trooper. As it turns out, Mr. Bailey had been a coach,
a goftball coach or a baseball coach for young Kenya Hall, and
Kenya Hall spoke with him.

Later that afterncon, somewhere around 4:00 o’clock
p.m. at the Clark County Medical Examiner‘s office, autopsies
were performed on the two victims. Chief Medical Examiner
Giles Sheldon Green and Deputy Medical Examiner Robert Jordan
performed the autopsy on the first victim, Carl Dixon. Dr.
Green and Dr. Jordan noted that the victim had close to
fifteen defensive wounds to his arms, his forearme and his
hands. These were cutting wounds that he received when he was
trying to fend off his killer. They totaled nineteen stab
wounds to the upper body. Dr. Green determined that this once
healthy young male, Carl Dixon, had died of numerous stab

wounds to the upper torso.
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Shortly thereafter Dr. Jordan performed the autopsy

on Matthew Gianakes. He learned that the victim had suffered

received a stab wound to the heart, and that was his cause of
death.

Ladies and gentlemen, April 15th, 1996 was a date in
which two young men were killed for no reason. They were
killed during a robbery, they were killed during a kidnapping.
It was not Kenya Hall who did the stabbing, it was the
defendant, Marlo Thomas.

Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Roger.

Any opening on behalf of the defense?

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, at this time we’ll waive
-- reserve our opening for our case in chief.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any witnesses out
there?

MR. SCHWARTZ: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, it’s
been a long day and we‘ve accomplished a lot. I certainly
appreciate your attention on this case; it's a very serious
and important case, both to the defense and to the State of
Nevada. And we’ll begin testimony tomorrow morning at 8:30.
Oon Tuesdays and Thursdays I‘ll start at 8:30; I'm going to

start a little later on Wednesday. But tomorrow at 8:30 be
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here sharp and we’ll begin hearing testimony on behalf of the
State.

g said, I'm going to admonish you again,
ladies and gentlemen. And please follow my admonishments, the
list that I read to you before and this admonishment that I
read to you before every recess.

Don’t converse among yourselves or with anyone else
on any subject connected with the trial, read, watch or listen
to any report of or commentary on the trial or any person
connected with the trial by any medium of information,
including, without limitation, newspapers, television and
radio; and don‘t form or express any opinion on any subject
connected with the trial until the cause is finally submitted
to you.

We’ll be in recess until 8:30 tomorrow morning.

(Court recessed until the following day,

Tuegday, June 17, 1997 at 8:30 a.m.)
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JUNE 18, 1997, 9:40 A.M.
(Court is called to order)

{.T y
A

3~ Tt emns sm e
wkIy

is not present)
(0ff-record colloquy)

THE COURT: -- outside the presence of the jury.

When we bring the jury in -- we ended up last night
that the State rested -- rested on their case. Mr. LaPorta,
what are you going to do when the jury comes in?

MR. LaPORTA: Well, Judge, at this juncture, outside
of Mr. Thomas we have no witnesses to present during our case
in chief. We have had extensive conversations with Mr. Thomas
about his right to testify; he‘s been, I believe, properly
advised and is solid in our -- in all of -- in all of the
bases for our decision, or his decision, I believe, which is
not to testify on his behalf during the defense’s case in
chief. So if his decision is the same as when I last talked
to him, the State will have no -- or the defense will have no
witnesses to present.

THE COURT: All right. Is that correct, Mr. -- do
you want to say anything, Mr. --

THE DEFENDANT: No. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: That's correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: All right. You don’'t want to testify at

this --
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THE DEFENDANT: No.
THE COURT: All right. The record will so reflect.

SO w we p

2o ! Y areade Tamad o
wo [T . 4

11 j us ng

the jury in. After oceed
with the instructions, then you’ll waive your opening
statement and you’ll rest; is that correct?

MR. LaPORTA: That’'s correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. And the -- this is the time
set for settling instructions in open court outside the
presence of the jury. Does the State request -- or does the
State object to any of the instructions the Court has
indicated will be given?

MR. ROGER: ©No, Your Honor.

= &

THE COURT: Does the defense object to any of the
instructions the Court has indicated will be given?

MR. LaPORTA: Your Honor, the defense objects to the
instructions as a package, based upon the defendant'’s
constitutional rights that we believe, that as a whole, the
instructions violate the defendant’s due process rights under
the United States and the State of Nevada’s constitution.
That’'s the only objection we’ll make, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Does the State want to respond to that?

MR. ROGER: I don’t know how, Judge. No, no
response.

THE COURT: Yeah, again, I -- I respect your right

to object to that and it’s a matter of record, but I don’t
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quite understand it so your motion is denied.

Does the State request the giving of any

MR, ROGER: ©No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Does the defense request the giving of
any instructions in addition to those the Court has indicated
will be given?

MR. LaPORTA: No, Your Honor, not outside of those
that have already been accepted.

THE COURT: All right., And it’s my understanding
for the record that you did not want to include in the
instructions the instruction regarding, "the law does not
compel a defendant in a criminal case to take the stand and
testify, and no presumption may be raised and no inference of
any kind may be drawn from the failure of the defendant to
testify”. Is that correct, you’re not requesting that?

MS. McMAHON: That is correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you're also requesting only one
lesser-included, which is the second degree murder, is that
correct?

MS. McMAHON: That is also correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you’re not requesting any other
lesser included?

MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honor, we specifically did
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not request either voluntary or involuntary manslaughter to be
included in the instructions.

THE COURT: Okay. All

OURT: Okay.

right.

MS. McMAHON: Thank you.

THE COURT: Counsel stipulate we’ve gettled these
instructions in open court and that we can give the
instructions prior to argument?

MR. ROGER: Yes, Judge.

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And again, I'm not presuming anything,
but just for the record, because if they come, you know, we
ninute without the jury, if there is a penalty phase,
and only if the jury finds first degree murder, I‘'m prepared
to go tomorrow on it, but it’s my understanding the defense
needs more time?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor, that’s correct. We
have an expert witness who will not be available ‘til next
week. We have rather extensive counselings scheduled with the
defendant’s family, and we feel that we will in fact be ready
to go forward on Monday, but not tomorrow.

THE COURT: All right. Certainly I want to conclude
this case, but I understand that and it’s a very important
case, and I'm not going to rush the defense. So 1’11 go along
with this defense request to -- if we have a penalty hearing

it’1l be at 9:15 on next Monday.
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What date is that, Ms. Clerk?

THE CLERK: 1It’'s June 23rd.

time? The State will be ready?

MR. ROGER: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And that’ll give you ample time

ready, is that correct?

MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor,

THE COURT: All right. That’s fine --

MS. McMAHON: Thank you.

THE COURT: -- with the Court.

Anything else to come before the Court --

MR. ROGER: Not by the State.

THE COURT: -- before we bring in the jury?

MR. ROGER: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything else? By the defense?

MS. McMAHON: No, Your Honor --

MR. LaPORTA: No, Judge.

MS. McMAHON: -- thank you.

THE COURT: All right, bring in the jury.
(Jury is present)

THE COURT: All right, counsel stipulate to

presence of the jury?

MR. ROGER: Yes, Your Honor.
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MS. McMAHON: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT:
gentlemen -- thank you very much for coming again, we
appreciate it and appreciate your attention in this very
important case, both to the State of Nevada and to the
defendant. We're here to resume this case. Yesterday, last
night, the State rested their case.

Is that correct?

MR. ROGER: That'’s correct, Judge.

THE COURT: Now as far as the defense is concerned?

MR. LaPORTA: The defense will be presenting no
witnesses at this time, Your Honor. We will rest our case.

THE COURT: All right. So you waive your opening
statement and you rest at this time?

MR. LaPORTA: Yes, Your Honor, we do.

THE COURT: All right. So the case is, ladies and
gentlemen, is now concluded with the testimony.

At this time we’'re going to give you the
instructions of law regarding this case. 1I'd like to orally
instruct you without reading the instructions, but these

instructions are of such importance, almost every word has

some significance, and they’'re very complicated and long, some

of ‘em, that it’s best that I read these instructions to you.

But please be advised you’ll be allowed to take these
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instructions of law into the jury deliberation room along with

forms of verdicts that have been prepared for your

evidence. So what we’re going to do now is read the
instructions.

Thereafter, we’re going to hear brief closing
arguments on this case, ladies and gentlemen. Since the State
has the burden of proof, they sort of have two bites of the
apple; they’ll get -- they‘ll -- the State will give a
statement, and then the defense will be allowed to give their
closing statement, and then the State will be allowed to give
a rebuttal closing argument, so that they have sort of two
bites of the apple, two closing arguments. All right?

So we’ll give the instructions, we’ll hear the
closing arguments, and then this case will be submitted to
you.

That being said, let me get to the instructions.

And bear with me on this, please.

Instruction Number 1. It is now my duty as Judge to
instruct you on the law that applies to this cagse. It is your
duty as jurors to follow these instructions and apply the
rules of law to the facts as you find them from the evidence.
You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law
stated in these instructions. Regardless of any opinion you

may have as what the law ought to be, it would be a violation
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of your ocath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law
than that given in the instructions of the Court.

2. If in these instructions an
idea is repeated or stated in different ways, no emphasis
thereon is intended by me, and none may be inferred by you.
For that reason, you are not to single out any certain
sentence or any individual point or instruction and ignore the
others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a
whole and regard each in the light of all the others. The
order in which these instructions are given has no
significance as to their relative importance.

3. The information is but a formal method of
accusing a person of a crime, and it is not of itself any
evidence of his guilt. In this case it is charged in an
information that on or about, or between April 14, 1996 and
April 15, 1996 the defendant committed the following offenses:

Count I, conspiracy to commit murder and/or robbery.
Defendants did on or about April 14, 1996 and April 15, 1996,
then and there meet with each other and between themselves,
and each of them with the other, willfully, unlawfully,
feloniocusly conspire to commit a crime, to wit: murder and/or
robbery; and in furtherance of said conspiracy, defendants did
commit the acts as set forth in Counts II, II and IV, said
acts being incorporated by this reference as though fully set

forth herein.
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